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Company profile

Rolls-Royce is a global company providing
power for land, sea and air.The company
has a balanced business portfolio with
leading positions in civil aerospace,
defence, marine and energy markets.

There are now some 53,000 Rolls-Royce

gas turbines in service and these generate
high-value services throughout their
operational lives. Rolls-Royce is a technology
leader, employing over 40,000 people and
operating from more than 30 countries.

Group financial highlights

For the year ended Decernber 31,2001 2001 2000
Group turnover £6,328m £5,864m
Underlying profit before taxation £475m £436m
Order book £14.4bn £13.1bn
Return on capital employed 19.3% 179%
Equity shareholders’ funds £2,068m £2,040m
Earnings per ordinary share:

Underlying 20.20p 19.38p
Basic 6.67p 507p
Dividend per ordinary share 8.18p 8.00p
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Chairman’s statement

Sir Ralph Robins
Chairman

We have continued to strengthen our position
in growth markets. All of our businesses made
good progress in 2001 and the current adverse
market conditions in civil aerospace will not
affect its long-term value to the company.
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In many respedcts 2007 was a record year.

We exceeded £6 billion of sales for the first time
and achieved a record order intake and a record
year-end order book. We generated our highest
level of underlying profit, achieved a positive cash
flow and increased underlying earnings per share,
in line with expectations.

The terrorist attacks on the World Trade Centre
and the Pentagen altered the course of the year.,
In the short term, the repercussions will have a
significant impact on our civil asrospace activities.

However,we have built a robust business through
the pursuit of consistent strategies over mary
years. This enabled us to mitigate the financial
impact of the attacks in 2001 and will enable

us to maintain a sound balance sheet and remain
profitable through the ensuing recession, after
absorbing the costs of restructuring.

‘We made good progress in each of our businesses.

In civil aerospace we continued to win 30 per
cent of engine orders placed and delivered

a record number of engines. This success was
achieved across our broad product range. The
Trent 5005 first flight took place on schedule

in 2001 and the engine will enter service on the
Airbus A340-500/600 during 2002. We launched
the Trent 900 engine for the new Airbus A380
and secured three of its first four airline customers,
In the aftermarket, new customers selected our
Total Care packages, which offer comprehensive
engine managerent services throughout the
life of the product.

Qur defence business performed well in 2001,
Itis a weli-balanced business with a broad
portfalio of mature programmes, as well as
new production and development praogrammes.
The EJ200 engine for Eurcfighter Typhoon has
commenced production and has continued
to perform well during flight tests. We signed
a US$1 billion contract covering design and
development work on the innovative LiftFan™
and associated equipment that provides the
short take-cff and vertical tanding capability
for the Lockheed Martin Joint Strike Fighter
{F-35) aircraft.




QOur marine business made an increased
contribution in 2001. Recovery of the commercial
offshore market sector continued and we won
a high share of the available business. In the
naval sector we announced two powerplant
support contracts, with a combined potential
value of £800 million, for the Royal Navy's
nuclear submarine programme. A new product
application, the Marine Trent 30, is well suited

to commercial and naval vessels requiring

high powered propulsion.

The energy business continued to be sffected
by the cost of developing and introducing
new products. We have made good progress
with the introduction of new low-emission
combustion systems for the industrial Trent
and resumed marketing the product in the
fourth quarter.

Qur financial services businesses produced a
robust performance, in the face of challenging
market conditions.

As a result of the strength of our businesses
we were able to report a record year-end order
book of £14.4 billion, with a further £2.3 billion
announced but not yet signed.

Importantly, we are continuing to invest in the
development of new products and services
across all our businesses. This investrent
addresses the whole product life-cycle from
materials to the management of total care
and future technologies such as fuel cells.

Cur success is founded upoen the talent and
commitment of our pecple. I regret that the
chalienges we face in the wake of the terrorist
attacks have caused us to announce significant
job losses, particularly in our civil aerospace
business. However, it is essential that we remain
competitive in the short term, making the cost
reductions that are necessary to withstand

the downturn and to position the Group for
long-term success. | thank all our employees
for their contribution,

| congratulate Phil Ruffles, John Rivers,

John Widdrington, Robert Somerville,

Couglas Whitlam and Linda Reeve, all of

whom received honours in the New Year

and Birthday Honours Lists. | would especially
like to congratulate Phil Ruffles and John Cheffins
who were awarded the prestigious Francois-
Xavier Bagnoud Aerospace Prize for the
development of the Trent engine family. The
US$250,000 prize will be used to further research
into design and manwfacture in universities.

l'extend my thanks to Phil Ruffles on his
retirement from the Board, after along and
distinguished career with Rolls-Royce and
have much pleasure in welcoming to the
Board, Mike Howse, who also succeeds
Phil Ruffles as Director — Engineering

and Technclogy.

In accordance with previous plans, | will retire
within the next 12 months. The excellent
performance of the company over the past year,
assures me that | will be leaving behind a strong
business with a bright future in the hands of

a highly effective management team under
Chief Executive John Rose's leadership.

Prospects

The short-term outlock for Rolls-Royce is
consistent with the guidance we provided
on October 19,2001, with profitability in 2002
affected by the downturn in civil aerospace.
Average net debt in 2002 is expected to be
ata level similar to that in 2000,

Rolls-Royce operates in growth markets, in
which we have established strong positions.
We therefore believe that the current adverse
market conditions in civil aerospace will

not materially affect the long-term value

of the business,

While engine deliveries will decline in 2002,
the momentumn in the civil acrospace business
is positive. As the number of engines in

service grows, the opportunity for sales of
spare parts and aftermarket services increases,
Our strategy ensures that we caplure a large
part of this opportunity.

The market for military aero engines is forecast
to grow steadily. Our defence business has

a strong position on many of the world's

new programmes.

Our marine business has been strengthened
by the acquisition of Vickers and is benefiting
from new programmes in the naval market
and a strong flow of orders inthe commercial
offshore market.

The performance of the energy business will
improve as new products are introduced into
service and development expenditure reduces.
in particular, further erders for the industrial
Trent are expected.

All our businesses provide a significant service
and outsourcing opportunity, with some 53,000
Rolls-Royce gas turbines in service around

the world.

The financial services businesses are now making
a substantial contribution to profits. Cver the
long term these businesses are expected to
grow in support of the company’s core activities.

Qur wide range of products, technical excellence,
success in the market place, growing aftermarket
activities and lower cost base position
Rolls-Royce for growth.

Your Board has recommended a final dividend

of 5.00p per share, making a total for the year of
8.18p,an increase of 2.3 per cent over 2001.

T
Al F

Sir Ralph Robins
Chairman
March 6,2002
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Rolls-Royce at a glance

Group
Sales; £6,328 million
Underlying profit before interest: £594 million

We have a record year-end order book and

we continue to make progress in developing
Our services as well as investing in new products
for the future.

We have built a strong business by growing
organically and through successful, focused
acquisitions aimed at broadening our

product range and opening up new markets.
This enabled us to deliver results in fine with
expectations, despite difficult market conditions
in the civil aerospace sector.

Group strategy
Our long-term strategy for the Group continues
10 be built on the following foundations:

+ Customer focused organisation

= Investing in products, capability and pecple
+ Developing effective partnerships

+ Building leading market positions

* Improving operating efficiency

+ Leveraging competence in technology

- Capturing afterrarket and services opportunity.
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Civil aerospace
Sales: £3,443 million
Underlying profit before interest £347 million

Rolls-Royce has one of the broadest ranges of
aero engines in the world. We have more than
500 airfine custorners and secure 30 per cent

of the annual global business in commercial jet
engines. We have successfully introduced seven
new civil engine programmes since 1995,
powering aircraft from the corporate sector

te the largest wide-bodied airliners. This year
we achieved record engine deliveries,

Highlights
* 30 per cent market share of commercial
jet engines secured.

* 9,000 civil jet engines in service.
« Trent 950G launched for Airbus A380.

- Total Care service agreements in place
for 30 per cent of fleet.

Defence
Sales: £1,400 million
Underlying profit before interest: £175 million

Rolls-Royce military aero engines are in service
with 160 armed forces. We power many of the
world’ latest fighters, transports, multi-role aircraf,
helicopters and unmanned aerial vehicles.

In particular we have key roles in scme of the
major future defence programmes such as
Eurofighter and F-35 Joint Strike Fighter (JSF).

Highlights
= US51 billion development contract
for F-35 JSF programme.

- First EJ200 production engines
delivered for Eurcfighter Typhoon.

* RTM322 helicopter engine gained
five new customners.

+ Technology agreement for future combat
engines signed with Snecma.




Marine
Sales: £827 million
Underlying profit before interest: £73 million

Rolls-Royce is a global leader in marine
propulsion, engineering and hydrodynarnic
expertise, with a broad product range and full
systerns integration capability. More than 2,000

commercial marine customers and over 50 navies

use our propulsion systems and products.

Highlights
« Established as global leader in marine
propuision systems.

- Now supplying over 2,000 commercial
and over 50 naval customers.

Market leader in design of offshore
support vessels.

+ Long-term contracts signed with UK
MoD for nuclear submarine fleet.

Energy
Sales: £608 million
Underlying loss before interest: £64 million

Rolls-Royce has supplied more than 5,000

units to customers in nearly 120 countries

and isinvesting in new products and capabilities
for the oil and gas industry and for distributed
electricity genaration. Our gas turkines are

used for gas compression, ofl pumping and
power generation.

Highlights
- Now supplied over 5,000 power units
in 120 countries.

+ RB211 increasing sales in power
generation sector,

+ Techrology agreement signed with ALSTOM.
+ Industrial Trent now being marketed and sold,

Financial services
Sales: £50 million
Underlying profit before interest: £63 million

The Rolis-Royce financial services businesses
continue to grow and we now aim to offer
customers total packages from product sales,
to financing, maintenance and after sales
support. Our financial services comprise
engine leasing, aircraft leasing and electrical
power project development.

Highlights
Through a combination of subsidiaries and
joint venture companies, we have:

+ 243 engines on lease to 40 fessees
in 22 countries

+ 64 aircraft owned and a further 49 managed
on behalf of third parties

- 12 power generation projects in operation.
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Chief Executive’s review

John E VRose
Chief Executive

A customer focused organisation

We have a robust business based on a strategic approach
that builds on the common characteristics of power systems
and an understanding of customers’service needs.We have
excellent technology, products, services and people and

are well positioned for further growth.
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The tragic events of September 11,2001 have cast
a shadow over the year. They affected individuals,
industries, institutions and countries in many
ways and generated greater levels of economic
uncertainty than have been experienced

in recent years.

The most profound impact on our company

will be experlenced in the civil aerospace

sector where our airline custorners felt the
consequences immediately. They saw reductions
in travel on a scale unprecedented in the last

50 years, with predictabile consequences for their
operations and fleet planning. The suppliers to
the industry will also be adversely affected until
demnand for air travel returns to normal levels
and surplus capacity has been absorbed.

Over the past decade we have transformed

our company by pursuing a consistent strategy.
We have created a balanced business portfolio
and a strong management team. We have built

a robust business by growing organically and
through focused and well-integrated acquisitions
which have broadened our product range and
opened up new markets.

The acquisitions of the Allison Engine Company,
Vickers, Cooper Energy Services compressor
business and National Airmotive and their
successful integration into Rolls-Reyce opened
up new opportunities for our civil, defence,
marine and energy businesses. In addition, we
have enhanced our focus through the disposal
of 40 non-core businesses over the past decade.
The result is that the civil aerospace sector now
accounts for 54 per cent of our Group sales. This
balance has helped reduce some of the financial
impact of September 11, allowing us to manage
our business through the crisis and remain on
course to deliver our strategic objectives.




In building a more robust business, we have also
created a highly integrated and effective team
of managers. In 1998 we implemented a new
organisation to place greater focus on delivering
our customers requirernents, Since then, three
quarters of senior management pasitions within
the company have been filled by new pecple,
athird of them joining us from outside the
company. The events of September 11 tested
the quality of this management team and | am
pleased to report that they successfully rose

to that challenge.

On October 19,2001, following a major review
within the company, we set out the detailed
planning assumptions underlying our
expectations for the civil aerospace business

in 2002. This work induded an analysis of the
impact which those assumptions would have
on demand and capacity and the consequences
for workload and employment at our facilities
around the world.

These assumptions were based on a detailed
review of our customer base and our areas

of activity. Since October, we have continued

1o refine our understanding of the potential
impact and made some further changes to

our assumptions. Nevertheless, we expect our
overall results for 2002 to be within the guidance
we provided on October 19,

One of the consequences of the downturn in
the civil aerospace market is a requirement for
us to accelerate our cost reduction programme.
We very much regret having to make people
redundant and in doing so,we treat people with
care and respect and provide outplacement
support as they leave the company.

One result of the rapid response of all our
businesses to these changed market conditions
is that our finandial results for 2001 are in line
with expectations with underlying profit of
£475 million (2000 £436 million) and average
net debt of £9%0 million, a reduction of 25 per
cent relative to 2000. We also achieved a record
year-end order book of £14.4 billion (2000

£13.7 billion).

The Business Sector Presidents cover the
activities within their areas of responsibility later
in this report, However, it is worth highlighting
here some of the changes we have made over
the past decade which give us confidence for
the future.

We have nearly doubled our tumover, more
than doubled our firm order book and increased
underlying profit before interest and tax from
£125 million to £554 million.

In creating a more balanced business we have
also changed the mix of our sales. Services have
grown from £1.0 billion in 1991 to £2.3 billion
in 2001 and now account for approximately
40 per cent of total sales. Our service activities
will continue to grow as a result of deliveries
of new engines, the increasing maturity of
curinstalied base,and the growth of our
repair and overhaul activities. The high level
of proprietary technology embedded in our
products enables us to offer a growing range
of value-added services,

Our civil aerospace market share for new engines
has increased by 40 per cent over the last decade
and we now consistently achieve 30 per cent of
the world market. This increase has been driven
by our investment i new and derivative civil
engines and our resulting ability to power a wider
range of aircraft. This broadening of our product
range has resulted in curinstalled base more
than doubling over the last decade to 5,000 jet
engines and our annual rate of defiveries more
than trebling to 1,362 in 2001, Although we now
expect to deliver approximately 900 civil engines
in 2002,a 40 per cent reduction on our irternal
forecast made before September 11, this wilt still
represent 27 per cent of the commerdial jet
engine market,

Of the 3,000 engines we have in service, 5,500
engines were delivered over the past six years.
Our young fleet of engines with their long
operational life, provides a significant and growing
oppertunity for profitable service activity,

Since 1991, our focus on service has enabled us
to more thar double the share of the repair and
overhaul market for our engines from less than
25 per cent to more than 55 per cent in 2001.
Following the events of September 11,we
expect civil aftermarket revenue in 2002 to

be approximately the same as in 2001, before
retuming to growth in 2003, relative to 2002,

as ourinstalled base continues to mature.

Our defence sector revenues almost halved
from £710 million to £380 millicn between 1990
and 1934, following the end of the Cold War
and the 'Peace Dividend’ However, our focus on
military markets has allowed us to rebuild cur
presence to the point where in 2001, revenues
were £1.4 billion. Today we power many

of the new generation of fighter, transpert and
multi-role aircraft, helicopters and unmanned
aerial vehicles. These programmes provide a
saund basis for growth, In common with all
our businesses, there is a significant service
opportunity and we expect to grow service
revenues in the sector.

The acquisition of the Vickers marine business

in 1999 and our continuing investment in new
products are transforming the scope and scale
of our marine business. We are now a workd
leader in the provision of marine power systems,
providing a comprehensive range of products
capable of managing all aspects of electrical and
propulsive power. We supply aver 2000 naval and
commercial marine customers in more than 200
countries. Our investment in new products will
enable us to take full advartage of the increasing
use of gas turbines for commercial shipping

as well as the oppartunities created by the
re-equipment programmes being implemented
by the world's navies. We have alsc been
particularly successful in the offshore ol

and gas marine market which is expected

te remain buoyant as oil exploration continues
at high levels.
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Chief Executive’s review
continued

In the energy sector we have invested in

new products to ensure that we are able to
benefit from the opportunities created by

the deregulation of the alobal energy markets
and the more widespread availability of gas

as a fuel. We have increased our focus in this
area by selling certain businesses which could
not meet our market share and profitability
objectives, While we serve this market up to
75MW, our recent technology transfer agreement
with ALSTOM also demonstrates that we can
benefit from the application of cur technology
to markets in which we do not choose to
participate as 2 principal.

Qur energy business has been affected by

the larger than anticipated costs of lawering
environmental emission levels for the industrial
Trent. This work has been necessary in order

to meet increasingly demanding international
regulations. We suspended sales of the industrial
Trent in 2000 but we have now re-commenced
taking orders and the first deliveries of the new
standard will take place in 2002,

Success in our chosen markets has been based
onour continuing investment in new technology,
where we have doubled our expenditure

over the past five years. We have applied this
investment te a number of new products

and innovative services, Market access has

been strengthienied by the development of our
financial services capability and the support of a
strong global network of partners and suppliers.
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Our most important asset is the quality of our
people around the world. They have continued
to demonstrate their ability and commitment in
the way they have managed the consequences
of Septernber 11 and their success in innovating
and adapting existing capabilities to access new
market apportunities. The increasingly global
nature of our business presents our people with
varying and exciting opportunities to exercise
their skills. It also means that we can recruit high
calibre individuals for the future and continue

to develop them through wide experience and
participation in high-quality training programmes.
The changes to our business structure, which we
implemented in 1998, simplified and flattened
the arganisation to allow greater accountability
and transparency and encouraged all our skilled
peopie to contribute more effectively to the
achievement of our ohjectives.

We place great emphasis on corporate social
respensibility and we are continuing to develop
our policy in this area, which we believe will
contribute to the Group's competitiveness.

Care and concern for our people the
environmernit and the community has been

a key feature of our approach for a number

of years, Cur cornmitment to improving
environmental performance covers both

our operations and our products. Travel,
power generation and the transport of goods
play an essential role in improving the quality
of life for people all over the world. Rolls-Royce
technclogy creates products designed to satisfy
this growing demand whilst minimising their
impact on the environment. Our strong
performance in this area is reflected in the
Business In the Environment (BiE) index of
corporate environmental engagernent,

which in 2601, placed Rolls-Royce 26th

out of the 184 companies surveyed.

Inthis challenging business climate, it is easy
to forget the basis for our confidence which
stems from the growing worldwide demand
for clean and efficiently generated propulsive
and electrical power,

We believe that we have both the depth of
technology and the understanding of customers’
requirements to create profitable long-term
relationships in those parts of the rmarket where
the barriers to entry are highest. Our approach
extends beyond the technology that we embed
in our products. Wherever possible we seek

to integrate our technical expertise throughout
our customers'value chain, addressing the
whole product life-cycle from materials to

the managemenit of Total Care service packages.

Cur strategic approach builds on the common
characteristics of power systems and cur

ability to adapt to customer requirements

in the different market sectors. In doing so

we maximise the transfer of capability and
knowledge between our business sectors,

We aim to'invest once and use many times,”
gaining maximum benefit from the investments
we make and the innovations we achieve in
technology, products, services and processes,

Over the past decade we have built a robust.
business, created a strong management team
and won a world-leading market position based
upch our unigue technology. We have become
adept at managing change and we have
demgcnstrated this by the speed of our action
following recent events. | am confident that

we will be well positioned when we emerge
from this difficult period.




Dr Mike Howse
Director - Engineering and Technology

Technology

Research and development is key to the
success of the cornpany. Last year we invested
£636 million in total research and development
and approved a record 215 patent applications
for filing. Our aim is to maximise the benefit

of this investrment by creating technolegy and
methods once but using them in many parts
of our business.

In doing this we aim to address the whole
product life-cycle, from applied research into
materials and validation of design concepts,

to the developrment of new products and the
managerent of their operational lives through
the development of our services capabilities,
One example of this approach is our web-based
predictive data management system,
Aeromanager, which went live in 2001. This
provides a whole range of facifities enabling a
customer to have access to interactive technicai
data, predictive information based on engine
health monitoring and an analysis of engine
performance using artificial intelligence.

Advanced computational fluid dynamics

tools, which have been developed through
collaberation with a nurber of universities,
have been applied within all business sectors,
This capability has improved the Kamewa water
jetimpeller,enhanced the performance of the
Trent 500 aerc engine high and fow-pressure
turbine and increased the life and engine
performance of the inlet particle separator

of the RTM322 helicopter engine.,

Technology has been acquired to enable

us to produce efficient, refiable and durable
iow-emission combustors. This technology has
been exploited in the design of the advanced
oycle WR-21 marine engine, the low-emission
Trent engine for power generation and the
latest Trent 900 for the Airbus A380.

We continue to research new materials
and manufacturing processes to enhance
the performance and life of our engines.
Coatings and surface treatments play an
important part in reducing wear, lowering
blade temperatures, increasing fatigue life
and preventing oxidation and cerrosion
of various components in our products,

While common technclogies and methods

are routinely applied across our business
sectors, further benefits are obtained by

using components, sub-systems or engines

for multiple applications. Thus,the core of the
Trent 800 engine which powers the Boeing 777
has been used to produce aTrent engine for
power generation and is now being adapted to
produce the Marine Trent 30, for the commercial
and naval marine market sectors,

Technology acquisition programmes have also
started to produce the compressors, turbines and
combustors which will be the building blocks for
the next development of both the three-shaft
Trent-styke engines for larger aircraft and the
two-shaft engines for srmall and business jet
aircraft. The aim is to produce engines with
improved performance, lower noise, reduced
emissions and better cost of ownership.

The technology agreement, which we recently
announced with ALSTOM alkows us to benefit
frorm our technology in markets where we do
not offer our own products, thus increasing
the returns from our original investment.

We will continue to pursue advances in
technolegy and processes through investment
in research and development using the
exceptional and extensive skills withir our
own workforce and by collaboration with
universities, partners and suppliers.
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Chief Executive’s review
continued

John Cheffins
President -- Civil Aerospace

Civil aerospace
Growing services and improving business mix

In 2001 we secured a 30 per cent share of
commerdcial jet engine orders placed, sustaining
our cumulative share for the past six years at

3G per cent and clearly maintaining our second
place ranking amongst the world's engine
manufacturers, New engine production

of 1,362 was the highest ever for the company,
increasing our market share of commercial jet
deliveries by value to 28 per cent.

Total commercial aircraft orders in 2001 decreased
in quantity by 43 per cent 10 1,119 and in value
by 22 per cent to US$71 6 billion indicating that
the market cycle had passed its peak prior to the
impact of the terrorist attacks of September 11.
We anticipate a further sharp downturn in

both orders and deliveries in 2002;we expect

to deliver around 900 engines,a 40 per cent
reduction on our internal forecasts made

before September 11.

Nevertheless this still represents 27 per cent

of the commercial jet engine market. With

our grawing and relatively young installed

base and our strengthening aftermarket service
skills, the civil aerospace businessis in a strong
competitive position.

The Trent engine farnily rmade good progress

in 2001, The latest family member, the Trent 800,
was launched for the Airbus A380 with crders
from Singapaore Airlines (SIA}Virgin Atlantic

and Qantas. The Trent 500 made its first flight
powering the Airbus A340-600 and preduction
deliveries commenced towards the end of 2001.
TheTrert 800 received a significant new order
from SIA and the Trent 700 recorded four new
airline customers. Five new risk and revenue
sharing partners joined the Trent 900 programme
during the year.

Investing in products, capabilities and people

Rolls-Royce: is irvesting in new products and capabilities
to develop further its growing aftermarket and services
business. COre example of this is Aeromanager, where
the technology of the World Wide Web is providing new
opportunities for innovative customer services,
Aerornanager is a recent intreduction from Rolls-Royce
and uses the power of the web to provide an efficient
and enhanced method of arganising the management
of engine fleets. Custemers have access to secure, timely
and accurate data.




The market for corporate aircraft was steng
in 2001 and hasbeen less impacted by
September 11 then the airfine matket. We
achieved a 32 per cent total value market
share of engine deliveries and the BR710
engine was selected for Borbardier’s new
model, the Global 5030, The latest version
of the Tay engine, the Mk 611-8C made 2
cuccesshul first testrunin November.

Deliveries of AE 3007 and BR715 engines

for regional jets were al record levels it

2001, The 1,000th AE 3007 engine was delivered,
highlighting the sUCCess of this productin beth
regional airline and corporate aircraft sectors.

The Septemiper 11 effect was pronounced ir:

the regional jet categary put early indications are

that it is recovering faster than other parts of the
market, as regional jets are returnad to service in
preference 10 turbaprops in this sector. Boelnd
~nnounced in Decernber that production of the
8717 will continue at @ sharply reduced rate.

|ntermatioral Aerc Engines, the rulti-natianal
consortium in which Rolls-Royce is a major
<hareholder, had ancther successful year winning
its highest ever percentage share of Aitbus A320
family engine orders at 72 per cent.

We completed a successful implementation of
the SAP systern for Ervterprise Resource Planning
during the year. The improved leve! of control

it has delivered was put to good use urder the
difficult circumstances following September 11
25 we rescheduled our entire civil supply chain
toeffect a 40 per cent reduction in planned
deliveries at very short notice.

Strong progress was also made with the
developrent of afterrmarket services. We

now have qver 6,000 et engines in service

and our broad services capability is incteasing
poteniial business. The proportion afthe
installed hase which is covered by Total Care
packages increased to justover 30 per cent
during the year. 1o develop further our customet
offering inthis area,an initial group of 15 airlines
went on-ine with aeromanagercom, the
Rofls-Royce e-business portal which provides

a comprehensive RNGEe of aftermarket sarvices.
Construction was completed on the facilities
for the maost recent addition to-our repalr

and overhaul global network, Singapore

Aero Engine SEMVICes, which commenced
operations eary in 2002,
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Chief Executive’s review
continued

Colin Green
President — Defence Aerospace

Defence
Well positicned on new programmes

Our abllity to offer a wide product range,
our strong US position through: Rolls-Royce
Corporation {formerly known as Allison) and
our unique technology, led to significant
progress in the defence aerospace sector

in 2001.

The highlight of the year was the receipt of a
USS$1 billion conitract for the development of the
short take-off and vertical landing (STOVL) system
for the F-35 Joint Strike Fighter (JSF). Rolls-Royce
is the only engine manufacturer with combat
proven vertical lift technology and the F-35is
expected to be the largest defence aerospace
programme in the world. The Fi36 alternate
engine for the F-35 also secured its next phase
contract. Rolls-Royce is tearmed with General
Electric and has a 40 per cent share of this
important programme.

The first production £)200 engine for the
Eurcfighter Typhoon was delivered during
the year. We also signed a contract with the
UK Ministry of Defence to provide aftermarket
support for this programme.

Our strong position in the defence transport
sector was extended with the certification of
the AE 2100 on the ltalian C-27J and the supply
of AE 2100 and T800 engines for the innovative,
Japanese US-1A Kai amphibious aircraft.




The first production Adour Mk 106 engines
for upgraded Jaguar aircraft were supplied
to BAE SYSTEMS and the first development
Adour Mk 9571 was delivered for the latest
version of the Hawk trainer aircraft.

Our helicopter engine programmes had an
outstanding year. The Rolls-Royce Turbomeca
RTM322 gained five new customers, having
been selected by Denmark, Finland, Norway,
Portugal and Sweden, confirming it as the
customner’s choice in open competition.
Initial LHTEC CTS800 production engines
were delivered and Thailand became a new
custorner for the TBOC-powered Super bynix,
Australia becarne the first export customer
for the MTR390-powered Tiger,

The AF 3007-powered Global Hawk became
the first unmanned aircraft to depart from
one centinent under its own power and land
on ancther,and it also won the prestigious
US Collier Trophy.

With customers in mare than 160 armed forces
around the world, aftermarket services are a key
element of our business. During the year we
further developed our position in the aftermarket
through agreements with Avial, Lockheed Martin
and Standard Aero.

We also continued to build new partnerships
designed to enhance our strategic position and
secure future business. Rolls-Royce Snecrna will
conduct technology programrnes for future
combat aero engines supported by the UK

and French governments. Air Tanker (in which
Rolls-Royce has a 20 per cent share) is bidding
to provide an innovative solution for the UK's
Future Strategic Tanker Aircraft requirement.

Vickers Defence Systems made a larger
contribution to defence prefits, following a good
performance in 2000, This was due to effective
rmanagernent of the Challenger 2 contract,
enabling a one-off release of contingencies as
the contract progressed towards completion,
The company signed a £250 million contract
with the UK Ministry of Defence for the supply
of the next generation of engineer tanks for

the British Army.

Developing effective partnerships

Rolis-Royce s working in close partnership with Lockheed
Martin, Pratt and Whitney and General Electric to deliver
high-technology solutions for vertical lift and propulsion
for the F-35 (JSF) aircraft programme.

Building leading market positions

Rolis-Royce has built unrivalled expertise in short take—off and
vertical landing (STOVL) technclogy. As a result of its leading
position in this market the company will eam USST illion over
tenyears for developrment wark on vertical lift components,
including the LiftFarn™ for the F-35 (JSF).
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Saul Lanyado
President - Marine

Marine
Continuing strong order intake

The successful integration of the Vickers marine
business has created a global leader in marine
prepulsion systems, During 2001 we bullt upon
this by maintaining market leading positions in
both the commercial and naval marine markets
and focusing on being the leading provider

of integrated power, propulsion and mation
control solutions worldwide. More than 2,000
commercial marine customers and over

50 navies now use Rolls-Royce propulsion
systerns and products.

The strong offshore supply and service vessel
market continued. We ended the year with
£270 million of contracts to supply ship
designs and integrated equipment for a
record 71 vessels,

We are playing a significant role in the prestigious
Queen Mary 2 cruise liner project through the
supply of Mermaid™ podded propulsion systems,
Brown Brothers stabilisers and Rauma Brattvaag
cable handling equiprent. The Queen Mary 2

will be the largest ocean liney built to date and

is due tc enter service in 2003.

Long-term contracts worth up to £760 million
were signed with the UK Ministry of Defence to
ensure the safety and power performance of the
Royal Navy's nuclear submarine fleet. Rolls-Royce
expertise throughout the propulsion system

led to our selection for the design, supply and
support of propulsors for the submarines Astute,
Ambush and Artful.

Improving operational efficiency

Over the past two years the Rolls-Rayce marine business
has successfully integrated the Vickers marine business
and has reorganised its manufacturing operations to
improve productivity.

Leveraging competence in technology

Rolls-Royce expertise in computational fluic dynamics,
developed for our aerospace business, is now being
applied to our marine markets to enhance the
perfarmance of matine propulsion systems.




Contracts with a value in excess of £100 million By applying cur‘invest once and use many
were signed to supply 12 advanced cyde WR-21  times'approach to techneiogy we have adapted

marine gas turbines and Kamewa propulsion our aerc-erigine technology 1o create the
systerns for the first six ships in the Royal Navy's marine Trent gas turbine. The marine Trent
new Type 45 class of air defence destroyers. offers a market leading power-to-weight ratio

and a high degree of operational flexibility 1o
We continued 1o introduce market feading both commercial and naval customners.

products,launching a new marine diesel engine,
the Bergen C, which is already winning orders in
the offshore market, and a new range of modular
thrusters designed to offer a wide range of
propulsion and positioning options.

Following the acquisition of the Hamburg-based
specialist company, Intering, we are now able

to offer our customers complete motion

control solutions.
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Tom Curley
President - Energy

Energy
Introducing new products

in the energy sector, Rolls-Royce has supplied
more than 5,000 units to customers in nearly
120 countries. We are an established supplier

to the worldwide oil and gas markets,a growing
equipment provider to the global power
generaticn industry and a significant supplier
of aftermarket services. We have achieved this
position through a combination of crganic
growth, focused acquisitions and by developing
strategic partnerships.

Our gas turbine products serve major energy
markets in gas compressicn, cil pumping
and power generaticn. Cther Rolls-Royce
energy products include centrifugal gas
compressors, control systems, and innovative,
customised service products such as
Leng-Term Service Agreements.

investrent in a range of new products for the
power generation market has continued to affect
the profitability of the energy business.

We have broadened our power generation
product range through the development of
the industrial Trent. Further developrment work,
which includes compietion of a standard of
combustion systern that can be retrofitted to
existing power stations, is being undertaken.
Recent successful testing of an alternative
combustion system has resulted in the
resumption of marketing of the industrial Trent.
There is very significant potential for the Trent
in power generation applications, despite
short-term market weakness following the
events of September 11, and the company

has recommenced taking orders.

The industrial RB211, the highest output gas
turbine in its class, is gaining increased global
acceptance in the growing independent power
generation sector. Shipments in 2C01,to
customers in Europe and South America,
included the first upgraded 32.1MW units.

2007 was a very gocd year for our oil and gas
business, which has developed into a global
operation. Orders received in 2001 induded
industrial RB211 engines for installations in
Algeria, Azerbaijan, Brazil, Indonesia, Malaysia,
Pakistan and North America. The oil and gas
market for 2002 looks equally encouraging.

Our customer service business provides
aftermarket support in both the ofl and gas

and the power generation sectors. The growing
number of Long-Term Service Agreernents

offer customers more reliable and profitable
operations while opening up new oppartunities
for the company.

Capturing aftermarket and
services opportunities

We continue to grow our aftermarket and services businesses
acr0ss the whole of the Group. In our energy business we
provide aftermarket support in both the oil and gas and

the power generation sectors.

Inthe cil and gas sector, RB211 DLE {dry low emissions}
technology gas turbines already operate successfully on
power gengration and land-besed pipeline duties and are
riow being employed offshore. These gas turbines combine
efficient power output with extremely low-emission levels.
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Paul Heiden
Finance Director

Our performance in 2001 was robust in the
face of difficult market conditions.We met
expectations for earnings and net debt,
strengthened the order book and continued
to improve the return on invested capital.
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Results for the year
Underlying profit before tax was £475 milion”,
up hine per cent over 2000.

Underlying eamings per share grew by
four per cent, to 20.2p.

Group turnover increased by eight per cent
to £6,328 million, as a result of growth in the
civil aerospace, marine, energy and financial
services sectors.

+ Civil aerospace sales grew by nine per cent.
This Included growth in engine deliveries
of 25 per cent.

+ Defence turnover was almost level with 2000,
with aerospace growth offset by declining sales
ir Vickers Defence Systems, which is nearing
completion of the large Challenger 2 contract.,

= Marine sales grew by ten per cent, reflecting
the strength of the offshore support
rarket sector.

+ Energy sales increased by 28 per cent,
reflecting our strong position in the cil
and gas sector.

- Financial services turnover increased
by 25 per cent, with most of the growth
arising in engine feasing and power
development businesses.

The company reinforced its position as a global
business, with 82 per cent of sales to customers
outside the UK

Underlying trading margins, before risk and
revenue sharing partner receipts and net
research and development increased from
87 per cent to 99 per cent.

excluding exceptional and non-trading items,
defined in note 2.




The net interest charge reduced from

£123 million to £119 million. This reflected
the lower level of average net debt during the
year, partially cffset by growth in the financial
services businesses, the gross assets of which
are primarily funded by debt.

Group interest was covered 6.6 times, based
upon underlying profit before interest, excluding
joint ventures.

As announced on October 15,2001, the
company expected to spend atotal of £290
million to complete its ongoing rationalisation
exercise and to reduce capacity to reflect the
lower dernand resulting from the events of
September 11. Of the £290 million, £86 million
was expensed during the year and a provision
of £144 million was made to cover committed
specific restructuring activities. The company
expects the balance of £60 million, to be charged
during 2002. The cash impact of the provision
and of the further charges will be concentrated
in the first half of 2002. These items are excluded
from underlying eamings.

Restructuring costs of £25 millicn (2000 £45
millicn) were recorded within cost of sales and

included in the calculation of underlying eamings,

The Group made an underlying profit before
tax of £475 million (2000 £436 million).

After charging exceptional and non-trading
items, profit before tax was £392 million
(2000 £166 million).

Net working capital, excluding long-term
contracts, reduced as a percentage of sales,
from eight per cent to six per cent.

Afinal dividend of 5.0p per share is proposed,
making a total of 8.18p per share for the year,an
increase of two per cent over 2000. The dividend
is covered 24 times by underlying earnings and

0.8 times after exceptional and nen-trading items.

The number of Group ernployees reduced
by 1,500 during the year.

Order book

The order book was £14.4 billion (2000 £13.1
billicn}. Items are indluded in the order book
when a signed contract exists.

In civil aerospace it fs commaon for a customer
to take options for future orders in addition to
firm orders placed. Such cptions are excluded
frorn the order book until they become firm,
signed orders.

In defence aerospace, long-term programmes
are often ordered for one year at a time. In such
circumnstances, even though there may be no
engine choice available to the customer, only
the contracted business is included in the
order book.

Total Care packages for aftermarket services
represented 16 per cent of the order bock.
These are long-term contracts where only
the first seven years revenue is included in
the order book

Business which has been announced but for
which contracts have not yet been signed is
exduded from the order book This amounited
to a further £2.3 killion at the year end (2000
£1.4 billion).

Investments
The company has continued to invest in projects
which create value.

Gross research and development investment
amounted to £636 million (2000 £604 million).
Net research and developrent was £358 million
(2000 £371 million). The smali reduction was
largely attributable to the mix of products under
developmient. Investment in training amounted
to £26 million (200G £27 million),

Capital expenditure, excluding investments

in financial services businesses, was £161 million
{2000 £186 million). Investment in financial
services businesses was £60 million

{2000 £67 million).

Partnerships

The development of effective partnerships
has been a key feature of the company's
leng-term strategy. Major partnerships are
of two types:joint ventures and risk and
revenue sharing partners,

Joint ventures

Joint ventures are an integral part of our
business. They are involved in engineering and
manufacturing, repair and overhaul,and financial
services. They share risk and investrment, bring
expertise and access to markets, and provide
external objectivity. Our joint ventures have
become substantial businesses, as described

in the table below. Substantially all of the debt
of the joint ventures is secured on the assets of
the respective companies and is non-recourse
to Rolls-Royce. The recourse financing
obligations total £51million and are included
in contingent liahilities (see note 28).

Risk and revenue sharing partners (RRSPs)

RRSPs have enabled Rolls-Royce to build &
broad portfolio of engines, thersby reducing the
exposure of the business to individual product
risk and enabling it to increase market share by
40 per cent over a relatively short time period.

RRSP agreements are a standard form of
cooperation in the civil aero-engine industry.
They bring benefits to the engine maker and

the pariner. For the engine manufacturer they
bring some or all of the following benefits;
additional financial and engineering resource;
sharing of risk;and initial programme investment
contribution. As appropriate,the partner supplies
components free of charge and subsequently
receives a share of the long-term revenues
generated by the engine programme in
proportion te its purchased programme share.
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The sharing of risk is fundamental to RRSPs.

In general, partners share financial investment

in the programme; they share market risk as they
receive their return from future sales; they share
currency risk as their returns are denominated in
US dollars; they share sales financing obligations;
they share warranty costs;and, where they are
ranufaciuring or developrnent partners, they
share technical and cost risk

All receipts from RRSPs are recorded as‘other
operating income’ Payments to RRSPs are
recorded within cost of sales. [n 2001 other
operating income in respect of RRSPs amounted
10 £23% million {2000 £3471 million). Payments

to RRSPs, charged in cost of sales, amounted

to £113 million (2000 £129 million).

Intangible assets

Since the implementation of FRS 10,from
January 1,1998, purchased goodwill has been
recognised within intangible assets in the year
i which it arises and amertised on a straight line
basis over its useful economic lifeup to a
maximurm of 20 years.

Costs incurred in respect of testing and meeting
regulatory certification requirements for new civil
engine/aircraft combinations are carried forward
in intangible assets to the extent that they can
be recovered out of future sales.

Similarly, costs incurred in the adaptation and
testing of an existing aerc engine for marine use
have been carried forward in intangible assets.
This application engineering expenditure is very
low risk and there is a high degree of certainty
that future sales will be achieved.
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Cash
The Group cash flow staternent is shown ¢n
pages 38 and 39 of the financial statements.

Net debt for the year reduced by £189 million,

to £501 million (2000 £690 miliion). The cormpany
attaches greater significance to the average net
debt level, which reduced, as planned, by sorme
25 per cent, from £1,323 million to £890 million,

The level of average net debt is expected

to increase in 2002, to a level similar to that
experienced in 2000. This reflects the impact
of the events of Septermber 11,which will lead
1o lower levels of profitalility and higher
rationalisation costs in 2002,

Net cash flow from operating activities was £418
rmillion {2000 £479 million). Major uses of funds
were capital expenditure and investments in
financial services businesses.

Taxation

The overall tax charge on the profits before tax
was £86 million (2000 £87 million),a rate of 45
per cent (2000 52 per cent). This relatively high
overall Group tax rate is primarily due to the
impact of goodwill charged against profits for
which ro tax relief is available. Goodwill charged
against profits in 2000 was greater than in 2001
due to the disposal of the Materials Handling and
Vickers Turbine Components businesses and this
is the main reason for the year to year reduction
in the overall tax rate,

The rate is also affected by losses in certain
overseas businesses for which tax relief will only
be available against future profits in the same
jurisdiction. No relief has been taken for such
losses in the accounts.

During the year the company adopted FRS 19,
a new accounting standard for deferred tax.
Accordingly comparative figures have been
restated. The effect of the new standard is to
produce a Group tax rate which is generally
higher than under the previous standard, but
which is expected to be more stable going
forward. There Is no impact on cash flows.

The tax charge on underlying profits was £154
milfior {2000 £134 miillion), a rate of 32 per cent
(2000 31 per cent).

Acquisitions and disposals

The bulk of Vickers Turbine Components was
sold in December 2000. Cash refating to this

disposal, of £76 million, was received in 2001.

Accounting policies

In 2001, FRS 18 {Accounting Policies) and FRS 19
{Deferred Tax) have beenimplemented, FRS 18
has had no significant impact. The impact

of adepting FRS 19 has been noted in the
taxation section.

The Group is required 1o adopt FRS 17 (Post
Retirement Benefits) fully in 2003. For 2001
accounts certain disclosures are required
including the vaiue of pension scheme assets
and liabilities using the new rules specified by
FRS 17. Under this standard a snapshot is taken
of pension fund assets and liabilities at a specific
peint in time. Thus, movements in equity
markets and discount rates are expected to
create volatility in the calculation of scheme
assets and liabilities,

On this basis, at December 31,2001, and after
taking account of deferred taxation, for the UK
schemes, there was a net shortfall of assets over
respective liabilities amounting to £284 million.
This deficit represents six per cent of assets under
management and has been assessed at a point
in time when equity markets are depressed
and discount rates are low, both of which have
a material impact on the net surplus/deficit

of the schemes. For example,a 15 per cent
improvement in equity markets or a one per
cent increase in discount rates would have

the effect of eliminating this deficit.

There is no impact on funding requirements for
2002. The Group's funding requirements for the
schemas are derived from tri-annual actuarial
valuations, the next of which is due in 2003. Any
adjustrnent to the current contribution rate will
depend upen the predicted performance of the
pension fund assets and liabilities at that point.

The shortfall on overseas schemes amounted
to £113 million, which is covered by existing
provisions on the balance sheet.




Aftermarket services

The company has been successful in selling
Total Care packages, covering long-term

support for custarmers' engines. This is leading

to anincrease in long-term contracts where

the engine malntenance agreement is linked to,
and entered into at the same time as, the original
equipment sale. In such cases, the original
equipment sale and support activities, indluding
the sale of spare parts, will form part of the same
long-term contract. The pricing of such contracts
differs from conventional engine sales and
reflects the long-term nature of the contract,
Profit is taken progressively on a prudent basis.
Following the market success of Total Care
packages, amounts recoverable on these
contracts grew to £268 million during the year.
These are included in debtors and shown in
notes 15 and 16.

Risk management

The Board has established a structured approach
to risk managerent. The risk committee of the
Board has accountability for the system of risk
management and reporting the key risks and
associated mitigating actions. The Director of
Operational Risk reports to the Finance Director.

The Group’s policy is to preserve the resources
upon which its continuing reputation, viability
and profitability are built,in order to enable the
corporate objectives to be achieved through the
operation of the Rolls-Royce business processes.
Risks are formally identified and recorded in a
corporate risk register, which is reviewed and
updated on a regular basis, with risk mitigation
plans identified for all significant risks.

An external assessment of the risk management
system was carried out during 2001, It concluded
that the Rolls-Royce risk maragement process
exceeds the Turnbull compliance requirements.

Treasury management

The Group uses various financial instruments

in order to manage the exposures that arise in
its business operations as a result of movements
in financial markets. The Group does not trade
in financial instruments for profit generation.

All treasury activities are focused on the
management of risk. There have been no
significant changes in the Group's policies

in the last year.

The main risks continue to be movements

in foreign currency exchange rates, interest

rates and commodity prices. The Board

regularly reviews the Group's exposures and

risk management and a specialist committee
also considers these in detail. All such exposures
are managed by the Group Treasury function,
which reports to the Finance Director and which
operates within written policies approved by the
Board and within the internal control framework
described in the report of the directors,

The Group's policy is to monitor and manage
its exposure to counterparties. Credit fimits are
set to cover all financial instruments for each
counterparty. The Group palicy is that it is
exposed only to those counterparties that have
along-term credit rating of A3/A- or better.

Foreign exchange

The Group is exposed to movements in exchange
rates for both foreign currency transactions and
the translation of net assets and profit and ioss
accounts of foreign subsidiaries.

The Group does not hedge the translation effect
of exchange rate maverments on the profit and
loss account or balance sheet as it regards its
interest in cverseas subsidiary companies as
long-term investments.

The Group is exposed to a number of foreign
currencies, The most significant transactional
currency exposure is the US daollar followed by
the Euro, US dollar incorme, net of expenditure,
represents 38 per cent of the UK turnover.

The Group cperates a hedging policy using a
variety of financial instruments with the objective
of minimising the impact of fluctuations in
exchange rates on future transactions and

cash flows.

The permitted range of the ameount of cover
taken is deterrmined by the written policies set
by the Board, based on known and forecast
income levels. The forward cover is managed
within the parameters of these policies in order
to achieve the Group’s objectives, having regard
tothe Group's view of long-term exchange rates.
Forward cover extends for periods of up to eight
years and is in the form of standard foreign
exchange centracts and instruments on which
the exchange rates achieved may be dependent
on future interest rates. The Group also writes
currency options against a portion of the
unhedged dollar income at a rate which is
consistent with the Group’s long-term target
rate, The premiumn received from the sale of the
options is included in the Group's achieved rate.
Total US dollar cover approximated to five years'
net US dollar income at December 31,2001
(2000 four years).

The conseguence of this policy has been to
mairitain a relatively stable long-term foreign
exchange rate. Note 24, financial instruments,
includes the impact of revaluing forward
currency contracts at market values on
December 31,2001, showing a reduction in
value of £550 million. This figure, which will
fluctuate over time, does not represent an actuat
loss. The Group has entered into these forward
contracts as part of the hedging policy, described
above, in order to mitigate the impact of volatile
exchange rates,
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Interest rate risk

The Group uses fixed rate bonds and floating
rate debt as funding sources. To the extent that
interest rate risk exists,a combination of interest
rate swaps and caps are used to manage

the exposure.

Commodity risk

The Group has an ongoing exposure to the
price of jet fuel arising from business operations.
The Group’s objective is to minimise the impact
of price fluctuations. The exposure is hedged

in accordance with parameters contained in
awritten policy set by the Board. Hedging is
conducted using commadity swaps that extend
for periods up to four years.

Sales financing

I connection with the sale of its preducts, the
Group will on some occasions provide financing
support for its customers. This may involve the
Group guaranteeing financing for customers,
providing asset value guarantees on aircraft for
a proportion of their expected future value,

or entering into leasing transactions.

The Group manages and monitors its sales
finance related exposures to customers and
products within written policies approved

by the Board and within the internal framework
described in the report of the directors. The
permitted levels of gross and net exposure are
limited in aggregate by counterparty, by product
type and by calendar year.

The Board regularly reviews the Group’s sales
finance related exposures and risk management
activities. Each financing commitrnent is subject
1o a credit and asset review process and prior
approval by the Chairman, Chief Executive,

and Finance Director. The Group operates a
sophisticated risk-pricing model to assess risk
and exposure. Costs assodiated with providing
financing support are incorporated in any
decision to secure new business.
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The Group's exposure Management process
falls into three phases:

1.minimising the level of exposure that is
assumed by the Group from sales finance
commitrments through the use of third party
non-recourse debt where appropriate or
through other arrangements;

2.reducing the level of exposure that has been
assurned by the Group through the transfer,
sale, or re-insurance of risks;and

3.the proporticnate flow down of risk and
exposure 10 refevant risk and revenue
sharing partners.

Each of the above forms an active part of

the Group’s exposure management process.
Where exposures arise, the strategy has been
and continues to be, to assume where possible,
liquid forms of financing commitment that may
be sold or transferred to third parties when the
opportunity arises.

Contingent liabilities

Note 28 to the accounts describes the Groups
contingent liabilities under sales financing
arrangernents. The Groug's gross contingent
liability has been stated for the first time.

The figure is calculated by aggregating the
maximum exposure on all such sales financing
commitments, before applying the value

of the underlying security, but offsetting

sums separately insured and sums provided
for in the balance sheet, In 2001 provisions
against customer financing exposures were
increased from £35 million to £82 million

(see note 22).

The Group’s contingent liabilities are spread over
many years and relate to a number of custorers
and a bread product portfolio. The contingent
liabilities represent the maximum aggregate
gross and net exposure the Group has in respect
of defivered aircraft, regardless of the paintin
time at which such exposures may arise.
Exposures are not reduced to a net present
value for the purposes of reperting the Group's
contingent liabilities.

The gross contingent lability increased to
£857 million {2000 £766 millicn},of which
£78 million (200G £107 million) refates to sales
financing support provided to joint ventures.

The Group uses Airclaims Limited as an
independent appraiser ta value its security
portfolio at both the half year and year end.
Airclaims provides specific values (both current
and forecast future values) for each asset in

the security portfolio. These values are then
used to assess the Group’s net exposure. They
incorporate Airclaims’ assessment of the current
depressed level of aircraft values following the
events of September 11,2001.

After taking account of the underlying security,
the Group’s net contingent liabifity increased
to £206 million {2000 £184 million). The year on
year movernent in reported contingent liabilities
reflects the utilisation of sales finance
commitments in the last year, the attrition of
existing contingent liabilities through natural
debt retirement or risk transfer, and, additionally
in the case of net contingent liabillties, the
changes in the level, form, and value of any
underlying security.

In reporting the Group’s contingent liability with
respect to sales financing, the Group includes
anet expasure stress test which incorporates

the impact of a 20 per cent fall in the value of all
securities compared to the Airclaims current and
future values. This represents a cautious view,

as the Airdaims current and future values alreadly
reflect the current depressed market. Application
of this stress test results in a net contingent
liability of £283 million (2000 £347 million).

The directors regard the possibility that there
will be any significant loss arising from these
contingencies as remote. I




Shareholder value

The Group continues to subject all investments
to rigorous examination of risks and future cash
flows to ensure that they create shareholder
value, All major investments require Beard
approval.

The Group has a portfclio of projects at
different stages of their life-cycles. Discounted
cash flow analysis of the remaining life of
projects is performed on a regular basis.

During the year Rolls-Royce shares fell by 16 per
cent from 198.25p to 166.5p per share, compared
1o a 14 per cent fall for the aerospace and defence
sector and a 16 per cent fall for the FTSE 100.

The comipany’s shares ranged in price from
121p in October to 250p in June.

The number of shares in issue at the end of the
year was 1,601 million,an increase of 32 million
of which 10 million refated to share options
and 22 million related to scrip dividends.

The average number of shares in issue was
1,589 millicn (2000 1,558 million). Underlying
earnings per share were 20.20p, an increase

of 4.2 per cent over 2000. The propased final
dividend per share will result in a total payment
of 8.18p per share, an increase of 2.3 per cent
over 2000.

Financial Services
Robust performance

Rolls-Royce aims to provide its customers with

a complete service, from the financing of initial
product sales to ongoing maintenance and
after sales support. The financial services
businesses comprise engine leasing (Rolis-Royce
& Partners Finance), aircraft leasing (Pembroke)
and electrical power project developrmnent
{Rolls-Rayce Power Ventures).

Rolls-Royce & Partners Finance (RRPF}, established
in 1989 is a 50:50 joint venture with GATX Capital
and is the world's largest engine leasing specialist
with 243 engines on lease to 40 lessees in

22 countries. Last year, RRPF diversified its asset
base to include the A501, Avor, RB211 and Trent
industrial engines. Utilisation of the fleet of lease
engines remains high after September 11,with
98 per cent of engines on lease at the year end.

Permbroke, alse a 50:50 joint venture with GATX
Capital, had a fleet at the year end of 64 owned
aircraft and a further 49 aircraft managed on
behalf of third parties. It worked closely with its
airine custorners in the critical weeks foliowing
September 11 and as a result no aircraft leased
by Pernbroke has been retumed.

In the energy market, Rolls-Royce Power Ventures
continued to develop its portfolio of projects.

It endied the year with 12 power generation
projects in operation, three in construction,

and four in the late stages of commissioning.
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Board of directors
at March 6,2002

Sir Ralph Robins B5¢, FREng

Chairman

Appointed to the Board in 1982. He joined
Rolls-Royce in 1955, became Managing Director in
1984, Chief Executive in 1991, and was appointed
Chairman in 1992, He is non-executive Chalrman of
Cable & Wireless plc and a non-executive director
of Schroders plc and Standard Chartered ple. He is
a Fellow of the Royal Academy of Engineering and
Chairman of the Defence Industries Council.

Age 69.

John E V Rose MA

Chief Executive

Appointed to the Board in 1992. He joined
Rolls-Royce in 1984 and was Managing Director ~
Aerospace Group from 1995 to 1996 when he was
appointed Chief Executive. He is a Fellow of the
Royal Aeronautical Soclety and a Council Member
of The Prince’s Trust as Chairman of the Prince’s
Trust Business, Age 49.

Lord Moore of Loewer Marsh PC, B5c
hen-executive Deputy Chairman and Senior
Independent non-executive director

Appointed to the Board in 1994 and appointed
Deputy Chairman in 1996. He is a non-executive
director of Monitor Company Inc, Marvin &
Palmer Inc., and Private Client Bank AG and he is
a former President of the Energy Saving Trust.
Age 64.

Peter J Byrom BSc¢, FCA

Non-executive director

Appointed to the Board in 1997, He was a director
of N M Rothschild & Sons Limited from 1877 to
1996. He is Chairman of Domine Printing

Sciences plc and of Molins PLC, and a
non-executive director of Wilson Bowden plc. He is
a Feliow of the Royal Aeronautical Society. Age 57.

John P Cheffins BSc, Ing

Chief Cperating Officer and

President - Civil Aerospace

Appointed to the Board in 2001, He joined
Rolls-Royce in 1967, became President and

Chief Executive Officer of Rolls-Royce Industries
Canada Inc.in 1891, Director, Civil Engine Business
in 1993, President - Civil Aerospace in 1998 and
Chief Operating Officer in 2001.He is a Fellow of
the Royal Aeronautical Society and a member of
the Institution of Electrical Engineers. Age 54.
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Colin H Green BSc, FREng

President — Defence Aerospace

Appointed to the Board in 1996, He joined
Rolis-Royce in 1968, became Director - Military
Engines in 1989, Executive Vica President —
Business Operations Alliscn Engine
Company,Inc.in 1985, Managing Director —
Aercspace Group in 1996, Director — Operations
in 1998 and was appointed President — Defence
Aerospace in 2001, He is a non-executive director
of BAA plc, He is a Fellow of the Royal Academy of
Engineering, the Royal Aeronautical Society and
the Institution of Mechanical Engineers. He is also
a Council Member of the Society of British
Aerospace Companies and Chairman of the UK
Council for Electronic Business, Age 53.

James M Guyette BSc

President and Chief Executive Officer of
Rolls-Royce North America Inc.

Appointed to the Board in 1998.He became
President and Chief Executive Officer of
Rolls-Royce North America Inc,, in October 1997,
Untl 1994 he was Executive Vice President,
Marketing and Planning of United Alrlines. He
serves on the United States National Research
Council Aeronautics and Space Engineering Board
and he is a director of the Private Bank and Trust
Company of Chicago, lllincis. Age 56.

Pautl Heiden BSc, ARCS, ACA

Finance Director

Appointed to the Board in 1997. He joined
Rells-Reyce in 1992 from Hanson plc as Finance
Director — Aerospace Group. He was appointed
Director — Industrial Businesses in 1997 and
Finance Oirector in October 199%.He s a
non-executive director of Bunzl plc. Age 45,

Dr Michael G J W Howse OBE, FREng, FRAes,
CEkng,PhD

Director — Engineering and Technology

Appointed to the Board in 2001. He joined
Rolls-Royce in 1968 and has held a variety of
posltions within Engineering, including Chief
Development Engineer RB211 Development, Head

of Advanced Engineering for the Aeraspace Group,

Director of Engineering and Technology — Civil
Aercspace. He is a Fellow of the Royal Academy of
Engineering, a past Chalrman of the Technical
Board of the Scciety of British Aerospace
Companies and Visiting Professor in the School of
Mechanical Engineering at Cranfleld University,
Age 59,

Sir Robin Nicholson FREng, FRS

Non-executive director

Appointed to the Board in 1986. Until 1596 he was
an executive director of Pilkington plc. He is 2
Fellow of the Royal Academy of Engineering, a
Fellow of the Royal Soclety, a non-executive
director of B? p.lc.and he is Pro-Chancellor of
UMIST, He was a member of the UK Government’s
Council for Science and Technology from its
inception in 1993 until 2000. Age 67.

Carl G Symon BS¢, MSc

Non-executive director

Appointed to the Board in 1999. He was previcusly
Chairman and CEQ, IBM UK. He held numerous
executive positions in IBM Corp.in Canada, USA,
Latin America and Asia during a 32 year
international career. He is currently Managing
Director, Global Business Development and
Alliances, Diamond Cluster Interational Inc. and
Chairman of Riversoft plc, Worldmark
International Ltd and Metapack Ltd. He is a
non-executive director of BT Group plc and a
Member of the Advisory Board of Crass Atlantic
Partners, Age 55.

Richard T Turner CBE, BA

Group Marketing Director

Appointed to the Board in 1992. He joined
Rolls-Royce in 1991 having previously been with
the Company from 1965 to 1988.He Is a Fellow of
the Royal Aeronautical Society, a member of the
Board of British Trade International and several
other government advisory committees. He is a
non-executive director of Corus Group plc and
Senior plc. Age 59.

Sir John Weston KCMG

Non-executive director

Appeinted to the Board in 1998. During his
Diplomatic Service career he has lived and worked
in Europe, the USA and Asia. In London he was
Deputy Secretary to the Cabinet and Political
Director in the Foreign Office. He served as British
Ambassador to NATO 1992 to 1995, and
subsequently as British Ambassador to the

United Nations in New York until July 1998.
Formerly a non-executive director of BT Group plc
1998 to 2002.He is currently a non-executive
director of Hakluyt & Co Ltd, Hon President of the
Community Foundation Network (UK) and
Chairman of Governars of Sherborne School.

Age 63.

Charles Blundell A

Company Secretary

He Joined Rolls-Royce in 1993 and was appointed
Company Secretary in 1995. Age 50,

Membership of principal Board committees:

Audit committee - P J Byrom (Chairman}, Lord Moore of
Lower Marsh and Sir Robin Nicholsen.

Remuneration cammittee — All non-executive directors
(C G Symon, Chairman).

Nominations committee - Sir Ralph Robins (Chairman),
JEV Rose and all non-executive directors.




Report of the directors

The directors present their report and the financial statements of the
Group for the year ended December 31,2001.

Principal activities
The Group's principal activities are described in the Company profile
on page 1.

Results for the year

The Chairman's statement, the Chief Executive’s review and the
Finance Director’s review describe the year's operations, research
and development activities and future prospects.

The directors recommend a final dividend of 5.00p a share. With the
interim dividend of 3.18p a share, paid on January 7, 2002, this will make
atotal dividend of 8.18p a share for the year. Subject to approval

of the recommended final dividend by shareholders, the total cost of
dividends for 2001 is £132 million, If approved, the Company will pay
the final dividend on July 17,2002 to shareholders registered on

April 26,2002,

Directors

Directors who held office during 2001 are listed on page 24, with the
exception of Mr P C Ruffles who retired from the Board with effect
from October 18,2001, Mr J P Cheffins was appointed a director of the
Company with effect from January 1,2001 and in accordance with the
Campany’s Articles of Association was re-elected to the Board by
shareholders at the 2001 Annual General Meeting.Or M G J W Howse
was appointed a director of the Company on October 18,2001.

Under the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third of the directors
are subject to re-election every year, with each director also being
subject to re-election at intervals of not more than three years. Any
director appointed during the year is required 1o retire and seek
re-election by the shareholders at the next Annual General Meeting.
The directors retiring at this year's Annual General Meeting are

Mr B J Byrom, Mr J M Guyette, Mr J EV Rose and Sir Johin Weston,

As a newly appointed director, Dr M G J W Howse will also retire at

the Annual Genera! Meeting in 2002, They all offer themselves

for re-election.

Corporate governance

The Group is committed to the highest standards of corporate
governance. This report {and, where appropriate, the Remuneration
report) describes how it applies the principles and complies with the
provisions of the Combined Code.

Compliance
The Board confirms that in 2001, the Company complied with all the
provisions of the Combined Code.

The Board

The Board comprises a chairman, a chief executive, six other executive
directors and five non-executive directors. Biographies of the directors
appear on page 24.

Lord Maore of Lower Marsh has held the position of non-executive
Ceputy Chairman since 1996 and is the Group's Senior independent
director. All the non-executive directors are considered by the Board to
be independent of management and free of any relationship which
could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent

judgernent. They are appointed by the Board for specified terms
on the basis of recommendations put to the Board by the
nominations committee,

The Board meets regularly throughout the year. It considers all issues
relating to the strategy, direction and future development of the
Group. It has a schedule of matters reserved to it for decision, which
is regularty updated. The requirernent for Board approval on these
rnatters is understood and cemmunicated widely throughout

the Group.

Jo enable the Board to function effectively and the directors to
discharge their responsibilities, fult and timely access is provided to
all relevant information.

There is an agreed procedure for directors to take independent
professional advice at the Company's expense. This is in addition to
the access every director has to the Company Secretary and to the
General Counsel. Where appropriate, training is offered to newly
appeinted directors.

The Group Executive
The Group Executive is responsible for the running of the Company
within the strategy determined by the Board.

The Group Executive is chaired by Mr J E V Rose — Chief Executive.
tts other members are:

Mr J P Cheffins, Chief Operating Officer and President — Civil Aerospace
Mr T Curley, President — Energy Business

Mr C H Green, President — Defence Aerospace

Mr J M Guyette, President and Chief Executive Officer of Rolls-Royce
North America Inc.

Mr P Heiden, Finance Director

Mr C J Hole, Director of Procurernent

Dr M G J W Howse, Director - Engineering and Technology

Dr S Lanyado, President - Marine Business

Mr 1 A Lloyd, Managing Director — Aero Repair and Overhaul

Mr J R Rivers, Director — Human Resources

Mr R T Turner, Group Marketing Director.

Board committees
The Board has delegated certain powers and duties to Board
cormmittees, all of which operate within defined terms of reference.

The nominations committee makes recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of executive and non-executive directors. The
committee is chaired by Sir Ralgh Robins and its other members are
Mr P J Byrom, Lord Moore of Lower Marsh, Sir Robin Nicholson,

Mr J E V Rose, Mr C G Symon and Sir John Weston.

The remuneration committee’s membership and principal terms of
reference are set out in the Remuneration report on pages 30 to 35.

The audit committee meets regularly with the external auditors, reviews
the Group's annual and interim financial statements and

also ensures that appropriate accounting policies and compliance
procedures are in place. As part of this process, it regularly reviews

the accounting treatrment of the Group's financial arrangements. The
committee is chaired by Mr P J Byrom and its other members are

Lord Moore of Lower Marsh and Sir Rebin Nicholson.
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Report of the directors
continued

The risk committee is accountable for the Cornpany’s risk management
and for reporting key risks and the associated mitigating actions to
the Board. The committee is chaired by MrJ EV Rese and its other
members are Mr ) P Cheffins,Mr C H Green, Mr ) M Guyette,

Mr P Heiden and Dr M G J W Howse,

The health, safety and environment committee is chaired by
Mr J P Cheffins and its other members are Mr P J Byram, Mr C H Green,
Mr J M Guyette and Dr M G 1 W Howse. The committee is responsible

for setting health, safety and environment (HS&E) policy and objectives.

Further information on its work in this important area
is set out in the Group's environmental report,

The nuclear propulsion assurance committee is responsible for the
HS&E aspects of the Company's nuclear facilities. s chaired by

Sir Ralph Robins and its members are Mr P Heiden, Dr M G J W Howse,
Sir Robin Nicholson and Mr J E'V Rose.

The community investment committee is responsible for administering
the Company's policy on charitable donations, The commiitee is
chaired by Sir John Westen and its other members are

Sir Robin Nicholson and Mr R T Turner. The policy pursued by the
committee when considering charitable appeals is set out on page 29.

Political donations
Iy line with its established palicy, the Group made no political
contributions in 2001.

Communication with shareholders

The Company attaches considerable importance to the effectiveness of
its cornmunication with shareholders. it publishes a concise summary
financial statement as well as a full report and accounts and there Is a

separate environmental report.

There is regular dialogue with individual institutional shareholders as
well as general presentations after the interim and preliminary results.
All shareholders can gain access to these presentations, as well as to
the annual report and other information about the Group, through the
Group’s web site at wwwiroils-royce.com. They may also attend the
Company's Annual General Meeting at which the key business
developments during the financial year are highfighted and at which
they have an opportunity to ask questions.

internal controls and risk management

Directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for the Group's system of internal control
and for reviewing its effectiveness from both a financial and
operational perspective. The system of internal contro! is designed to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and to provide reascnable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss,

In reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal contral, the
Board has taken account of the results of all the work carried out to
audit and review the activities of the Group.

There is an ongoing process to identify, assess and manage risk
including those risks affecting the Company’s reputation. This process
is subject 1o continuous improvement and has been in place
throughout the financial year to which these statements apply and up
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to the date of their approval. The risk process has recently been
updated to include explicitly the risks associated with corporate social
responsibility issues.

The Board has reviewed the process and has cenfirmed that it
complies with the Turnbull Committee Guidance on Internal Control
issued in September 1999

The Board has established a risk committee, chaired by the

Chief Executive, with specific accountability for the system of risk
management and for reporting key risks and their associated
mitigating actions te the Board. Details of the membership of the
committee are set out on this page.

Organisation

The Group has a clearly defined organisation structure within which
operational management have detailed responsibilities and levels of
authorisation, supported by written job descriptions and operating
manuals. The Group also has a code of business conduct.

The risk management system

The risk management system is an integral part of management’s
approach to delivering business objectives and is a systematic process
designed to identify, assess, treat, manage and communicate risks. it
also provides a method of problem escalation to the appropriate level
within the organisation and ensures actions are awned, defined,
resourced and effective,

Management are responsible for the ongoing identification and
evaluation of significant risks within their areas of responsibility and,
using a commen process, for the operation of suitable controls or
mitigation actions, Risks may arise from a variety of internal and
external sources. They may be associated with regulations, custemer
requirements and competitor actions or could result from the
capability of the processes used to execute our business ar from
completely external and largely unpredictable events such as terrcrist
activity or war. All risks, irrespective of source, are actioned through
processes operated by project and functional teams. Management
report reqularly ta the risk committee on their view of risks, and how
they are managed, 5o that the Board can then consider and review
these risks in terms of their potential impact.

During 2001, the communication and understanding of risk has been
enhanced throughout the organisation, including the ongoing
development of plans to address the identified risks. Management
have extended their continuous and comprehensive risk reviews, at
individua! businesses, to include all key projects, programmes and
business change plans.

All the processes operated by the Company are subjected to
continuous improvement activity, However, particular attention has
been paid to four key processes:

- Planning the business

- Resourcing the business

- Defining customer solutions

- Fulfilling customer orders.

Steps have been taken to strengthen risk management in each of
these areas with the objective of mitigating those risks that threaten
the delivery of business objectives,




Systerns of internal control

The general managers of individual businesses are aware of their
responsibility to operate systems of internal control which provide
reasonable assurance of effective and efficient operations, reliable
financial information and reporting and compliance with faw and
regulation. In addition, financial managers are required to
acknowledge in writing that their routine financial reporting is based
on reliable data and that their results are properly stated in accordance
with Group requirements.

The Group has a comprehensive budgeting system with an annual
budget approved by the Board. Revised forecasts for the year are
reported at least quarterly. Actual results are reported monthly against
budget and variances reviewed.In view of the long-term nature of the
business, the Group also prepares, annually, a detailed five-year plan
which is also reviewed by the Board.

The activities of the Group are subject to review by the risk
management organisation and the audit functions of health, safety
and environment, quality, engineering and business assurance. These
functions operate to work programmes agreed by the appropriate
Board rmemiber.

In particular, the business assurance function, which works closely
with the external auditors, undertakes a financial and operaticnal audit
programme agreed by the audit committee and covering all Group
activities. The programme includes independent reviews of the
systemns of internal control and risk management. Findings are
reported 10 the audit comrnittee three times a year,

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group attaches considerable importance te Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR). CSR is a key issue central to the Group's
relationship with its shareholders, customers, employees and the
communities in which it operates. Progress in this area will deliver
a cornpetitive advantage and will contribute 1o the Group's
long-term success.

During 2001, the Board considered an initial review of the Group's
position on CSR. It concluded that the Group had well developed
policies and information on health, safety and environment, charitable
donations, community involvement, employrment policies and
employee learning and development. Details of these policies are set
out on pages 27 to 29.The Board has commissioned further work on
other aspects of CSR and the Company will report on progress made
in this area in the 2002 Annual Report.

Recognising the importance of CSR, the Board has also reviewed the
procedures which exist within the Group for managing risks associated
with C5R. The Board sees it as important that significant risks with a
potential impact on shareholder value are promptly drawn to its
attention, with proposals for mitigating action, As is described on

page 26, the Company already has in place effective procedures for
identifying, assessing and managing risk, which are fully in line with the
requirements of the Turnbull Committee Guidance on Internal
Controls. These procedures ensure that risks asscciated with CSR are
regularly reported to the Board.

Health, safety and environment (HS&E)
The Group’s HS&E policy is founded on our core values of rellability,
integrity and innovation.

The Group's HS&E management system standard and guideline,
developed in line with the requirements of 150 14001 and

OHSAS 18001, was issued in 2000. It provides a common template
across the Group and good progress has been made in implementing
it during the year.lt is based on effective risk management and
requires the visible leadership and cormmitment of management at

all levels and the active participation of all employees and contractors.
Itis underpinned by the principle that HS&E is a line managerment
responsibility. To help managers undertake their role effectively, they
are advised and supported by HS&F professionals.

An integrated HS&E audit programme is supporting implementation
of the management syster. In 2001, the HS&E audit programme
covered a number of facilities in the UK, North America, Norway,
Sweden and Poland.

Businesses are making good progress against Group targets set in
1999 for the reduction of lost-time injuries, noise-induced hearing loss,
health surveillance, greenhouse gases, solvent use and recycling. Effort
continues 10 be made to reduce the amount of waste generated from
operations and to increase the proportion of such waste that is either
recovered or recycled.Further challenging reduction targets in ail of
these areas have recently been agreed.

The HS&E cornmittee (see page 26} is responsible for developing
HS&E policy and objectives and for reviewing the effectiveness of the
HS&E management system.

Health and safety management

The level of lost-time injuries remains low compared to other
companies in the engineering sector. It is with great regret, however,
that we report a fatal accident involving an employee at a recently
acquired facility in Poland. The accident occurred when a load,
being lifted by a fork-lift truck, fell and struck an employee. A full
investigation has been undertaken and corrective measures have
been put in place at the facility.

The Group continues with its commitment to provide appropriate
facilities and expertise in occupational health worldwide, The business
benefits of promoting and maintaining occupational heaith are
summarised in the Groug's ‘Occupational Health Strategy, Policy

and Management Guidelines'issued in September 2001

Management training featured significantly in 2001 with the launch

of an 'Occupational Health for People Managers’ course. This promotes
a better understanding of absence management, health promation,
health surveillance, disability and the requirements for fitness to work.
In addition, around 50 per cent of the management population

have attended stress awareness training and a new on-line stress

risk assessment questionnaire is helping employees to identify relevant
issues,

Continuing improvements in information technology systerns will
enahle relevant absence data 1o be recorded, The resulting bank
of knowledge will facilitate the early identification of health risks
associated with specific jobs.
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Report of the directors
continued

The health promotion programme in 2001 also included campaigns
on cardiovascular and stroke awareness. During European Health and
Safety week in October, a variety of preventative programmes were
held relating to musculo-skeletal disorders and work refated injuries.

The most significant occupational health risks remain those associated
with noise and vibration, although the incidence of noise-induced
hearing loss and vibration related disease has shown a steady
reduction over recent years.

Environment

The Envircnmental Advisory Board (EAB) chaired by Sir Robin
Nicholson, includes external members who are respected authorities
in their fields. The role of the EAB is to review and make
recommendations on the environmental aspects of the activities

of Rolls-Royce.

A second edition of the external environment report Powering a better
world’was published in 2001 and is available on the Rolls-Royce
website. The report provides detailed information on the health, safety
and environmental performance of the Group's operations for 1999
and 2000.1t also contains environmental information relating to
products and discloses the progress made towards meeting the
Group's challenging environmental targets.

All the Rolls-Royce core businesses operate an environmental
management system certified to the international standard 1SO 14001.
in addition, it is Company policy that any newly acquired business
should achieve 150 14001 certification within two years of acquisition.
Implementation programmes are currently underway in the UK, the
Nordic countries, Poland and North America. Over the last year, two
additionai facilities in North America have achieved certification.
Management systems at the business unit level provide effective and
robust controls for any significant environmental aspects and are also
used by businesses to reduce their overall environmental impact as
part of their commitment to continual improvement.

Rolls-Royce was placed 26th out of the 184 companies taking part

in the Business in the Envirenment (BiE) index of corporate
environmental engagement. This score reflects a sustained
improvement over the five years that the survey has been carried out.

In Decemker 2001, Rells-Royce Corporation {Indianapolis, USA), along
with partners Granger Energy and the Scouth Side Landfill, received
the ‘Industry Ally"of the Year Award from the Federal Ervironmental
Protection Agency. This award recognised the accomplishment of
implementing a landfill gas project, which has resulted in reduced
greenhouse gas emissions equivalent to some 250,000 tons of

CO, per annum.

The Group's nuclear facilities, involved 1n the design and manufacture
of submarine power plant for the Royal Navy, continue to operate
under strict control. The Nuclear Propulsion Assurance Committee,

a sub-committee of the Beard, is responsible for menitoring HS&E at
these facilities (see page 26).

In October 2000, applications were submitted to the UK Environment
Agency, requesting updated discharge authorisations for solid, liquid
and gaseous discharges from two licensed nuclear sites in Derby. The
proposed discharge limits were either the same as existing levels or
represented reductions. Seme limits were proposed where nene had
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existed before. The review by the Environment Agency includes

a consultation process, involving statutory consultees, such as the
Nuclear Installations Inspectorate and local authorities, and
non-statutory bodies, such as the Health Authorities, and the general
public. This rigorous process was followed throughout 2007 and is
likely to be completed in 2002.

A site in Derbyshire is used for the disposal of low-level radioactive
waste from the Rolls-Royce nuclear sites in Derby.

Ernployment policies

The number of Group employees at the end of the year was 42,200
(2000 43,700).I1n 2001, 176 graduate trainees and 73 modern
apprentices were recruited. In addition, there have been 220
undergraduate students in the Company for training periods of
between two and 12 months.

The Group’s employment policies and practices support its overall
business objectives by motivating and developing employees to be
responsive to the needs of the business and its customers,

The Group operates an equal opportunities policy. The Group's policy
is to provide, wherever possible, employment opportunities and
training for disabled people, to care for employees who become
disabled and to make the best possible use of their skills and potential.

A particularly strong emphasis has been placed on effective employee
communications and there are various forms of employee
communication programmes across the Group, each adapted to the
particular needs of individual businesses.

The Group consults with employees and their elected representatives
on a wide range of topics relating to its overall business objectives,
Management and employee representatives hold regular meetings at
every location to discuss opportunities and issues of common interest.

Employee learning and development

It is one of the Company’s fundamental values that achieving business
success and promaeting individual development go hand in hand. This
requires us o invest in training, education and development
programmes that improve individual and corporate capability. The
Company is actively working to create an organisational climate that
ensures effective business learning and continuous professional
development for individuals.

The Company has in place a business and professional development
framework which ensures that individuals and the Company can both
anticipate and respond to changing technical, market or customer
requirements. Last year the Company invested £26 million in the
training and education of its workforce.

During the year the Company received corporate recognition as an
Investor in People, This means that the Company as a whele has
successfully secured external accreditation for all its UK businesses,
an important step forward achieved by only a limited number of
companies.




Charitable donations

The Group pursues an active policy with respect to charitable
donaticns, which it sees as playing an important role in the Group's
involvernent in the community.

In the UK, the Company’s znnual charitable denations budget is
administered by the community investment committee (see page 26)
and by regionat site committees. The policy the cornrmittee follows
when considering charitable appeals is set out below:

‘As a forward-looking, innovative and global company, Rolls-Royce plc
is committed to being a good corporate citizen in its operations
throughout the world. The Group's policy on donations is to direct

its support primarily to causes with educational, engineering and
scientific objectives, as well as 10 social objectives connected with
the Company’s business and place In the wider community.’

During 2001, the Company made charitable donations in the UK
amounting to £381,600. This included support for the work of the
Derbyshire Community Foundation, The Prince’s Trust and the Royal Air
Force Benevolent Fund.

The Company also financed the administration and operation of a
Payroll Giving Scheme for its UK employees which enabled £365,000 of
emptloyee donations to be paid directly to the charities of their choice.
In 2001, the Company received a Payroll Giving Champions Award for
the successul launch of this scheme.

Elsewhere, the Group made charitatle donations amounting to
£568,000 in those countries in which it has significant presence, in
North America, this included support for the work of the September
11th Disaster Relief Fund and Habitat for Humanity and in Germany,
the Children’s Festivity of the Federal President of Germany.

A list of the principal donations made in 2001 is available on written
request to the Company Secretary.

Community invelvernent

The Company has a long and proud history of community
involverment. As part of our commitment to being a good corporate
citizen, Rolls-Royce seeks to assist the communities in which its
businesses operate and its employees live and work. The Company
aiso encourages its employees 1o play a full role in the cornmunity.

Our community investment activities support our values of reliability,
integrity and innovation. We are involved in a wide range of initiatives
across the fields of education, the arts, the environment and socia! and
economic regeneration.

I addition to our local charitable donations activity, we also positively
encourage our employees 1o take up opportunities for development
within local community based projects, Support in-kind is given to
local inftiatives.

Payment to suppliers

The Company is guided by the Supply Chain Relationships in
Aerospace (SCRIA) initiative. It seeks the best possible terms from
suppliers and when entering into binding purchasing contracts, gives
consideration to quality, delivery, price and the terms of payment.in
the event of disputes, efforts are made to resclve them quickly.

The Company had the equivalent of 55 days purchases outstanding at
December 31,2001, based on the average daily amount invoiced by
suppliers during the year.

Going concern

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason they continue to
adoept the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Share capital
The following have a notifiable interest in the Company’s ordinary
shares at March 6, 2002:

% of issued

share capital

B AG 9.89
Franklin Resources, Inc. 12.08

Auditors

A resolution to reappoint the auditors, KPMG Audit Plc,and to authorise
the directors to determine their remuneration, will be proposed at the
Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board

O

Charles Blundell, Company Secretary
March 6, 2002
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Remuneration report

Rolls-Rayce operates in a highly competitive, international market.

Its business is complex, technelogically advanced and has long time
horizons. The improvement in performance to which the Group is
committed depends cruciafly on the individual contributions made
by the executive team and by employees at all levels. It is for this
reason that the Board strongly believes that an effective remuneration
strategy will continue to play a crucial part in the future success of the
Group by providing keen incentives and ¢reating a close identity of
interest with shareholders.

This report also describes how the principles identified by the
Combined Code in relation to executive directors’ remuneration
are applied by the Company.

The remuneration committee

In line with the requirements of the Combined Code, the
remuneration committee {the committee), meets regularly and
has responsibility for making recommendations to the Board on
the Group's general policy towards executive remuneration,

The committee determines, on the Board’s behalf, the specific
remuneration packages of the executive directors and a number
of senior executives,

The committee consists exclusively of independent non-executive
directors.Its members are Mr P J Byrom, Lord Moore of Lower Marsh,
Siv Robin Nicholson, Mr C G Symon and Sir John Weston.

Sir Robin Nicholson served as chairman of the committee until

May 24,2001 when he was succeeded by Mr C G Symaon.

The Chairman of the Company, Sir Ralph Robins, and the
Chief Executive, Mr J EV Rose, attend meetings by invitation but
are not present during any discussion of their own emoluments.

During 2661, the committee appointed Andersen, a consultancy with
extensive experience of executive remuneration, to provide it with
independent advice through a senior partner. The committee may also
call for infarmation and advice from other advisors inside and cutside
the company as it sees fit.

Compliance

The Board confirms that the Company has complied throughout
the year with the provisions of the Combined Code refating to
directors rernuneration.

The framework of remuneration

The Board has adopted, on the recommendation of the committee,

a remuneration policy refiecting the following broad principles:

) The remuneration of executive directors and ather senior
executives should directly reflect their responsibilities and contain
incentives to deliver the Group's performance objectives; it must
also be capable of attracting and retaining the Individuals necessary
for business success;

Iiy Asignificant proportion of total remuneration should be based on
Group and individual performance, both in the short and long term;
and

iii) The system of remuneration should encourage a close identity of
interest between senior management and shareholders.

Within this framework of remuneration, the committee keeps under
regular review the competitiveness of the Group’s remuneration
structure.
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The policy takes into account pay and employrment conditions
elsewhere in the Group.

The main components of remuneration

The emoluments of executive directors and senior executives currently
comprise the following elements: a base salary, an annual perfermance
related award, long-term incentive arrangements, pension
contributions and other benefits.

Base salary

The committee believes that base salaries should generally be
determined with reference to the median-level of the relevant
marketplace and that performance-related plans should provide the
epportunity of increasing total earnings to upper quartile earnings
If performance justifies it.

Incentives and rewards linked to annual performance

Executive directors and senior executives participate in an annual
performance related award plan. This enables a maximum
performance award of up to 60 per cent of salary to be paid to
executive directors and a small number of senior executives for the
achievement of pre-determined targets based on a combination of
underlying eamings per share (5PS) and cash. There is a reducing scale
of maximum percentages for other senior executives. The targets are
set by the committee based upon the Group's annual operating plans.
Such payments do not form part of pensionable earnings.

One third of any awards made are paid in Rolls-Royce shares which are
held in trust for two years, with reiease normally being conditional on
the individual remaining in the Group's employment until the end of
the period. The required shares are purchased on the open market.
This arrangement provides a strong link between performance and
remuneration and helps to promote a culture of share awnership
amongst the Group's senior management.

The committee continues to keep the proportion of shares and the
deferred period for those shares under review relative to market
practice and the objective of promoting share ownership among
the Group's senior management.

Long-term incentives

The committee is aware that market practice for long-term incentives
is subject to change. it therefore continues 10 review market practice
and to develop plans which are appropriate to the nature of the
business and which will encourage improved performance to the
benefit of shareholders.

Executive share options were re-introduced in 1999, 5ince then, no
new grants have been made under the Company’s long-term
incentive plan (LTIP). The last grant under the LTIP came to the end
of its three year performance period at the end of Decernber 2001
and no award was made.

Depending on performance, executives are eligible to receive options
on an annual basis, The normal practice is to grant options in March,
fellowing the anncuncement of the Company’s annua! results. Options
are granted at the mid-market price on the day before the day of issue
and normally have to be held for a minimum of three years before
they are capable of exercise. They expire after ten years.In line with the
committee’s view that an increasing proportion of remuneration
should be performance-related, the exercise of options is subject to a




performance condition that the Group’s growth in EPS must exceed
the UK retail price index by three per cent per annum, over a
three-year period. Options were granted on this basis on

March 26,2001 {see pages 34 and 35).

In the course of 2001, the committee reviewed the adequacy of the
Company’s long-term incentives. It concluded that in order to help
meet a series of demanding challenges facing the business at that
time, key members of the executive team, many of whom had recently
been appointed, should receive more significant incentives under

the executive share option plan approved by sharehalders in 1999,

As a major employer in the US, the Company also had a need to
provide rewards for strong performance which were more in line

with US practice,

Accordingly the Company made a special award of options to key
executives in March 2001, including the executive directors (see

pages 34 and 35). The number of options granted, multiplied by

the option price, was the eguivalent in each case to four times the
executive director’s salary at the time of grant. These options were
granted under the rules of the Rolls-Royce 1999 Executive Share Option
Plan but the committee decided to introduce a number of additional
requirements to strengthen the incentive effect of the grant. First, the
options will only vest if the recipients have built up

a significant personal shareholding in Rolls-Royce. In the case of the
executive directors and selected senior executives, the shareholding
requirement is the equivalent in value to one-half of their annual salary
at the time of the grant. This holding will have to be achieved by the
third anniversary of the date of the grant, There were ajso annual
targets and a failure to achieve any of these will result in the options
lapsing in their entirety. Secondly, the Company performance criterion
has been strengthened significantly for these options so that the
growth in EPS will have to exceed six per cent year on year in absolute
terms as well as exceeding the increase in the UK retail price index by
three per cent per annum over a roiling three year period. These
requirements will be very demanding particularly in adverse trading
conditions, given the requirement that increases will be measured
from the year 2000 or the base year of the rolling three year pericd

in question, which ever has the more stringent test.

All employee incentives

The committee believes that share-based schemes, described in

more detail on page 59 make a significant contribution to the close
involvement and interest of all employees in the Group's performance.
The Company introduced an approved profit sharing share scheme for
UK employees in 1999,

UK employees will be able to take shares equivalent to one week’s
pay as part of the Company component of any bonus paid for 2002.
These shares will be delivered as 'Free Shares’ under a government
approved Share Incentive Plan {$IP). The Company will also enable

UK employees to make regular purchases of shares from pre-tax
income under the SIP. All such shares wilt be free of income tax if they
are retained for five years.

The Company operates a SAYE Sharesave plan which is availabie 1o
all its employees and those of wholly owned subsidiaries worldwide.
Employees agree to save money over the life of a savings contract,
which has a linked share option exercisable on contract maturity.
Aninvitation to participate in the plan was made in September 2001
to employees in 35 countries and applications were received from

46.1 per cent of those eligible. Based on these applications 55 million
options and Stock Appreciation Rights were granted on October 31,
2001.1tis intended that new issue shares will be used to satisfy options
on exercise.

Pensions
Mr J M Guyette participates in pension plans sponsored by Rolls-Royce
North America Inc.

All other executive directors under their normal retirement age are
members of the Group's UK pension schemes. These schemes are
funded and approved final salary pension schemes providing, at
retirement, a pension of up to two thirds of final remuneration, subject
toinland Revenue limits.

The Company also operates the Rolls-Royce 1994 Senior Executive
Retirement Scheme (SERS). The purpose of the SERS is to fund pension
provision above the pensicnable earnings cap which was imposed on
approved pension schemes under the 1989 Finance Act. The scheme
provides a lump sum payment on retirement in lieu of the additional
pension which would have been provided under the approved
schemes had the earnings cap not been introduced. Membership of
the scheme is restricted 1o executive directors and to a limited number
of senior executives. The scheme is administered by three trustees,
under the Chairmanship of Lord Moore of Lower Marsh, none of whom
has a beneficial interest in the scheme. The members of the scheme
include Mr P Heiden and Mr R T Turner. They joined the Group after the
introduction of the earnings cap and their terms and conditions on
Joining the Group included a commitment to provide pension and life
cover based on total salary, in line with other directors and senior
executives. The committee believes that for these executive directors, a
funded arrangement is in the best interests of shareholders and avoids
the build up of unfunded liagilities for the future,

The Company does not make any pension contributions in respect of
Sir Ralph Robins, who reached normal retirement age in June 1994,

In recent years the cost of providing pensicns through approved
schemes has increased, as actuaries have projected longer life
expectancy and lower investment returns. Recognising that the same
factors would increase the SERS lump sum necessary to equate to the
pension it was intended to replace, the Company has reviewed the
level of the SERS lump sum to be provided in respect of each year

of service for all SERS participants, including Mr P Helden and

Mr R T Turner. This review resulted in an adjustment to the lump sums
already accrued in respect of prior service and an increase to the lump
sum which will be accrued for each year of future service. The one off
adjustment in respect of past service is included in the additicnal
retirement lump sum earned in excess of inflation during the year.

During the year, special bonus payments were made to Mr P Heiden
and Mr R T Turner to cover the income tax liability incurred by them
on the contribution payments made by the Company into the SERS.
These payments amounted to £69,719 {2000 £29,415) in the case of
Mr P Heiden and £65,991 (2000 £41,018) in the case of Mr R T Turner.
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Remuneration report
continued

Details of the pension benefits, which accrued over the year in the
Group's approved UK pension schemes, are given below'™,

Transfer value”

Additional of additional
pension earnad  pension earned Total accrued
in excess of in excess of pension
inflaion during  inflation during entitlement at
year ended yearended  the year ended
Dec 31, 2001 Dec 31, 2001 Dec 31, 2001
£000 per anrurm £000  £000 per annum
» 398 B s
s 192
Mr CH Green T m .22
MrP Heiden 2
DrpG IV plow
MrRT Turner

Details of the retirement benefits, which accrued over the year in the
SERS and the plans sponsored by Rolis-Royce North America inc, are
given below”.

Transfer value *

Additional of additional
retirement retirernent
lump sum lump sum Total accrued
earmed in earnedin retirement
excess of excess of lumg sum
inflation during  inflation during entitlement at
year ended year ended the year ended
Dec 31,200t Dec 31,2001 Dec 31,2001
£000 £000 £000
MriMGuete™ 203 2 . 10%0
Mrpdeden T % . B 1094
MrR T Turner 323 293 822
Notes

' The pension entitlement shown is that which would be paid annually on retirement, based on
sefvice 1o the end of the vear.

* The transfer value stated represents liabilities of the Rolls-Royce sponsored pension schemes and
not sums paid to the individuals. The transfer value has been calculated on the basis of actuarial
advice in accordance with Actuarial Guidance Note GN11, less the director’s contributions.
Actuarial Guidance Note GN11 covers individual transfer calculations and the above figures have
been calculated using assumptions certified by the Actuaries as being consistent with GN{ 1,

* Benefits are translated at US$1.50 = £1.00.

* Members of the schemes have the opticn to pay Additional Voluntary Centributions. Neither the
contributions nor the resulting benefits are included in the above table.

* The lump sum entitlemant shown is that which wauld be paid on retirement based on service
to the end of the year.

* The transfer values have been calculated on the basis of actuarial advice.

7 Mr J M Guyette is a member of two defined benefit plans in the USA, one qualified and one
non-qualified. He is also a member of an unfunded non-gualified plan in the USA. He accrues a
retirernent lumnp sum benefit in all three plans. The aggregate value of the three plans is shown in
the second table. In addition, Mr Guyette is a member of two 401{K} Savings Plans in the USA, one
qualified and one nen-qualified, to which his employer, Rolls-Royce North America Inc,, contributes.
During 2021 the employer's contributions amounted to £21,645.
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Yerms and conditions

Service contracts

Sir Ralph Robins has a one-year rolling contract, which provides for
12 months’ notice in event of termination by the Company. He works
for the Company at the equivalent rate of three days a week.

Mr i M Guyette has a contract with Rolls-Royce North America Inc.,
drawn up under the laws of the State of Virginia. It is for an indefinite
term and provides that on termination without cause he is entitled to
one year's severance pay without mitigation.

In the light of the Combined Code, the committee has reviewed its
previous policy of offering UK executive directors two-year ralling
contracts. It concluded that new appointees to the Board would be
offered notice periods of one year. The committee recognises that in
the case of appointrents to the Board from outside the Company, it
may be necessary to offer a longer initial notice period, which would
subsequently reduce to twelve months after that initial period.

Mr J EV Rose, Mr C H Green, Mr P Heiden, and Mr R T Turner have
twa-year rolling contracts which provide for 24 months notice in the
event of termination of employment by the Company. These contracts
were entered into before the change in the policy described above.

The non-executive directors do not have service contracts.

Compensation and mitigation

The committee has a defined policy on cempensation and mitigation
to be applied in the event of a UK director's contract being
prematurely terminated. In these circumstances, steps are taken to
ensure that poor performance is not rewarded. When calculating
termination payments, the committee takes into account a range

of factors such as age, years of service and the director’s obligation

to mitigate his own loss.

Non-executive directors

The fees paid to non-executive directors are determined by the
Board who are informed by independent market surveys. Each
non-executive director receives an annual fee of £25,000.In addition,
fees of £5,000 per annum are paid to members of the audit and
remuneraticn committees, with the chairmen of these committees
receiving a further £2,500 per annum.

Lord Mocre of Lower Marsh is Chairman of the Trustees of the
Rolls-Royce Pension Fund and receives an annual fee of £10,000 for
performing this role.

Sir Robin Nicholson is Chairman of the Company’s Environmental
Adviscry Beard and recelves an annual fee of £5,000 for performing
this role.

Non-executive directors do not participate in any of the Company's
share schemes, performance pay arrangements or pension schemes,




Individual directors’ emoluments
The individual directors’ emolurnents are analysed as follows:

2001 2000
Annual performance related award scheme (APRA) Aggregate Aggregate
emoluments emoluments
Board and excluding excluding
Baskc committee Taxable Deferred Total penslons pensions
salarles fees benefits shares Cash APRA  contributions’  contributions
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Sir Ralph Robins* ... SO 24 80 60 | 240 648 457
120 240 689
75 150 —
a5 70 413
80 60 | 240 668 . 481
75 10 | 225 610 419
40 go | 1 182 =
55 0 | 164 421 391
56 112 326
- R P NS AR ¥
Lord Moore of Lower Marsh - - A3
SirRobin Nicholson - - 3
MCGSymon - - 30
Sir John 'Weston — — 30
170 616 1,231 3357
' One-third of the award was pald in Rolls-Royce shares (see page 30). In addition, the directors undertook to use an amount at least equal to a further one-third
of the total award after tax to purchase shares in the Compary.
? Details of the directors’ pensions are set out on pages 31 and 32.
* 40% of Sir Ralph Robins” taxable benefits for 2001 was reimbursed by Cable & Wireless ple, in respect of his pesition as non-executive Chaimman of that Company.
* Mr ) P Cheffins was appolnted to the Board with effect from January 1,2001.
¥ Mr J M Guyetie was paid in US dollars translated at $1.50 = £1.
* DrM.G ) W Howse was appainted to the Board with effect from October 18,2001,
? Mr P C Ruffles retired as a director with effect from Cetober 18, 2001.
Directors’ share interests
The directors, including their immediate families, at December 31, 2001, had the following beneficial interests in the ordinary shares of the Company as shown
in the following tables:
) January 1, December 31,
Holdings of ordinary shares 2001 2001
SirRalph Robins ‘ ) 99611 103,607

39249
31,887

38620
MECGSymen e e 2500 5,500
MrCG smon. § o B 200 300

* Or date of appointment f [ater.

Sir Ralph Robins, Mr CH Green, Mr I M Guyette, Mr P ) Byrom, Lard Mocre of Lower Marsh, Sir John Weston and Mr C G Symon took 2,505; 2,513; 1,814; 732; 882; 74 and 125 shares respectively
instead of cash dividends in January 2002. Otherwise there has been no change in the directors’ interests between December 31, 2001 and March 6, 2002,
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Remuneration report
continued

Directors’ share interests continued

Shares held in trust under the Shares held in trust under

annual performance related the profit sharing

award schermne’ share scheme’

. January i, December 31, January 1, December 31,

Shares held in trust 200" 2001 2001 2001
S RAION ROBINS e e e e o Jlnus 30807 2743 5076

Mr C H Green 16,043 27,786

MriMGuyene

MrPHeiden
DEMOIWHONSE et

MrRT Turner

1524127916
18i79 . 1e1rs
12,567 22,260

' Or date of appaintment if later.
? Under the annual performance related award scheme, shares vest after two years (see page 30).
* Under the prefit sharing share scheme, shares vest after three years.

In additon to their individual interests in shares, each of the executive directors is, for Companies Act purposes, regarded as interested in all the 3,200,199 shares held
by the discretionary trust linked to the share based incentive schemes, the 401,283 shares held by the qualifying employee share trust and the 3,247,233 shares held by
the trust linked to the Inland Revenue Approved Profit Sharing Share Scheme. These shares are held for the purpose of satisfying awards granted under the executive
share option scheme, the annual performance related award scheme, sharesave schernes and the profit sharing share scheme.

Market price Aggregate Aggregate

Jarwary 1, Granted Cancelled Exercised  December 31, Exercise atdate gains 2001 gains 2000 Exercisable
Share options 200 in 2001 in 2001 i 2001 2001 price exercised £000 £000 dates
Sir Ralph Robins T OO .7/ A - . 2003:2010

Nz
L8

........... essiss 0 essieet 2160 U0 2004-2011
‘ 4398 o . o8p 2005
172,674 860,881 7537 1025618 2120° ' 239

MrlEVRose &0 6750 VTOP 2002-2005
""""""""""" /3141 dgdp T 2003-2010
254830 6 20042011
.............. Clessie T mep .. 20042011
_7.662* 08p 2007

408,276 1,280,811 8,285 1680702 209p° ‘ '
MrJPChefins 72250 O 7= N - < N 2002-2005
CISAM 138 edp 2003-201
‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ VIBA0S ... ®&s o e4p .. 20032010
3080 B0 T T T
AT AT T T
LN -1 N2 . 2004-2011
2004-2011
438 o 2005

214638 872455 8539 1,078,554 2109° )
Mr CH Green L= SO -2\ e e 2002-2005
4756 L ATE Wp SR ST ... 2003
Coass o U gy ey
Camer T e e T g
de2gss o Lemss 20 . 2004-2011
Lo ss1 e B48149° 2l6p . 20042000
551 ) ~ssr® tosp 2007

230,500 810,738 1,041,238 210p° ' g5
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Directors’ share interests centinued

Market price Agaregate Agaregate

. January 1, Granted Cancelled Exercised  December 31, Exercise at date gains 2001 galns 2000 Exercisable
Share options 2000 in 2001 in 2001 in 2001 2001 price exercised £000 £000 dates
Mr)MGuyete maser e, L as8 9 200222009
N 2 T 24 A 1940 e e
BT e e L1829 194p
....................... 179161 o dsael o 26
............ J71esdr L 71egsl’  26p
4,398 4,398 o8
285,101 900,200 1,185,301 218p
MPHeden T Teesso T T ee e . 2002:2005
..2003.2010
20042011
..2004-2011
___________ 2007
Or M G I W Howse 41,250 ) 176p 7 2002-2005
108,481 209,741 318,222 206p°
Mr R T Turner - 195750

235,326

833,199

* Supplementary opticns, see page 31.
? Sharesave schemes,
* Weighted average exercise price of December 31, 2001 balance.

Al of the outstanding opticns awarded under the executive share option scheme were granted at the market value on the date of issue and no discount was applied.
The closing market price of the Company's ordinary shares ranged between 121p and 250p during 2001 and was 166.5p on December 31, 2001.

To assist executives in purchasing shares to fulfil their ownership requirement {as described on page 31), they were given a once only opportunity to join a plan
through which regular fixed salary deductions would be held in 2 savings account and used to purchase shares at a price of £2.16 at the end of a three year period.
Shares would have to be purchased at this price regardless of the pravailing market price at the time.

The interests of executive directors in the number of shares with the value of savings accrued to the end of 2001 are detailed below:

Shares
December 31, 2001

Mr P Heiden 3,277
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Group profit and loss account
for the year ended December 31, 2001

Continuing
opetations
before Restated
ptional Exceptional Total Total
items
Nates £m
Tumaver Group and shareof jointventures ! 6,680
Salestojomt ventures e e 871
Less share of joint ventures' turmover (1,223}
Groupturnover e e e e, 2, 6328
Cost of sales {5,193)

Gross profit

D
Group operati

Profit on sale of fixed assets
Profit on ordinary activities before interest

Net interest payable

—joi.mvemutes‘ Commm
Profit on ordinary activitiesbefare taxation A2
Taxaion e s s
Profitonordinary activitiesafter taxation
Eguity minority interests in subsidiary undertakings _— —
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders e 108 7
Dividends ) e & (132) {126}
Transferred from reserves 26 (26) 47)

! Exceptional tems are analysed in note 3. In 2000 exceptional items included in cost of sales and loss on sale of businesses were £145m and £73m respectively.

As permitted by the Companies Act 1985, a separate profit and loss account for the Company has not been Included in these financial statements.
Of the Group profit attributable to ordinary shareholders, a profit of £63m (2000 restated £184m} has been dealt with in the profit and less account of the Company.

There have been no material acquisitions or material discontinued operations in 2001 or 2000

Profit and loss account and balance sheet 2000 comparatives have been restated to reflect FRS 19 ‘Deferred Tax’ (see note 1).
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Balance sheets
at December 31, 2001

Group Company

Restated Restated

2000 2000 2001 2000

Notes £m £m £m £m

share_of.g.r‘c:::éjé'é's'séfs """ R o
" shareofgrossliabilies
B
—other 13

{943)

Currentassets

Other creditors 19 {2,720) {2,559) (2,240) @110

Net current assets 1,555 1,169 616 368

Equity minarity interests in subsidiary undertakings 2

The financial statements on pages 36 1o 68 were approved by the Board on March 6, 2002 and signed on its behalf by:
Sir Ralph Robins Chairman, P Heiden Finance Director.

> %2;
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Group cash flow statement
for the year ended Decermber 31, 2001

Net cash |nﬂow from operatmg activities

Acauisitiorsand disposals T B T8 (63
Equity dividends paid

Cash inflow before use of liquid resources and financing [ » & N &

Management of iuidyesources e B 162) 304
Financding T F 111 (360)
Increase/{decrease) in cash 120 (25)

Reconqllauon ofnetcash flow to movement in net funds R
lncrease/(decrease) in cash

Exchange adjustments
Movement in net funds

Net debt at January 1
Net debt at December 31 (501) (690)
At Other At
January 1, Ex:hangt non-cash Decamber 31,
Analysis of net debt 200 Cash flow di L 2001
£m £m £m £m

Cashatbankandinhand ) e ‘ .. 72 8 == 578

Finance leases {102} 11 (n — (92)
(690) 187 5 (3) {501)
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2001 2000

£m £m

Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cashflows
Qperatingproft 234 2680
Amortisation of intangibleassets (note §) 57 €0
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets (note 3} e e e e e e 198 1TB
Profit on dlSp05a|5 oftang|ble f‘xed assets and investments — (3}
R U PSR OPE PP 18049
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (52) 2
e Y = I 7
Increase in creditors o U 187 217
A Net cash inflow from operating activities A418 475
Returms oninvestments and servicing of finance e e
Interest received . S e e e 25 6
Interest paid Y e AT 98
Interestelementofﬁnanceleasepayments B e (6)
g Net cash outflow for returns on investments and servicing of finance {54) {76)

Other investments o T ey .
¢ Net cash outflow for capital expenditure and financial investment {179) 1253}

Loan repayments fromjemtventures o o V V } o e V B 2 "’ ]0

0 Net cash inflow/[outflow) for acquisitions and disposals 79 (53

Management of liquid resources

Gncreasel/decrease nshort-temdeposits O ) -
Increase In government securities and corperate bonds (3) {3}
E_Net cash (outflow)/inflow from management of liquid resources (162) 324

Flnarlclng

Caplta\e\ementofﬁnanceIeasepayments R -
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from increase/(decrease) inborrowings L 95 (370
Issue ofordlnaryshares """" ‘ e 16 10
F Net cash inflow/{outflow) from financing 111 (360)
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Group statement of total recognised gains and losses
for the year ended December 31, 2001

Restated
2001 2000
£m m
Profit attributable to the shareholders of Rolls-Royceple e e VOB LTS
Exchange adjustments on fargign currency net investments {11} 30
Total recognised gains for the year 95 109
Prior year adjustrnent (see Accounting policies page 41) {23)
Total recognised gains recognised since last annual report 72
- (]
Group historical cost profits and losses
for the year ended December 31, 2001
Restated
2001 2000
£m £m
Profiton ordinary activitiesbefove taxation e 192 166
Difference between the historical cost deprediation charge and the actual depreciation charge for the year calculared on the revalued amount 5 4
Historical cost profit on ordinary activities before taxation 197 170
Historical cost transfer from reserves (21) {43)
L4 K » L]
Reconciliations of movements in shareholders’ funds
for the year ended December 31,2001
Group Company
Restated Restated
2001 2000 2001 2000

Pnor year adjustment (see Accounnng pollaes page 41)

AL January 1

New ord\nary sha .............
Goodwill ransferred to the profit and loss account in respecr of dlsposais of businesses
At December 21 2,068 2040 2,009 2020
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The financial staterments have been prepared in accordarice with applicable accounting
standards on the historical cost basis, maodified to include the revaluation of land

and buildings.

The Group has adapted FRS 19 ‘Deferred Tax', whereby provision for deferred tax is
made on all timing differences which have originated, but not reversed at the balance
sheet date. This bas resulted in a net prior year adjustment of £11m for deferred tax as at
December 31, 2000 (see note 23), and an increase in the taxation charge reported in the
year ended December 31, 2000 of £4m. Additionally there has been an adjustment to
goodwill of £12m {see nate 9). The impact of the change in accounting pelicy for the
year ended December 31, 2001 is to reduce reported profit after taxation by £22m.
Comparative figures for December 31, 2000 have been restated as follows:

Loss forthe
period after Shareholders”
dividends funds
£m £m
As previously reported (43) 2063

Implementation of FRS 19 4 (23)
As restared

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial staterents include the financial statements of the Company and all
of its subsidiary undertakings made up to December 31, together with the Group's share
of the results up 1o Decernber 31 of:

) jointventures
A joint venture is an entity in which the Group holds a long-term interest and which
is jointly controlled by the Group and one cr more other venturers under a
contractual arrangement. The results of joint ventures are accounted for using the
gross equity method of accounting.

i) jointarrangements that are not entities
The Group has certain contractual arrangements with other participants to engage
in joint activities that do not ¢reate an entity carrying on a trade or business of its
own. The Group includes its share of assets, liabilities and cash flows in such joint
arrangements, measured in accordance with the terms of each arrangement, which
is usually pro-rata to the Group's risk interest in the joint arrangement,

Any subsidiary undertakings, joint ventures and joint arrangernents that are not entities,
sold or acquired during the year are included up to, or from, the dates of change of
control,

Some small adjustments have been made to comparative figures to put them on a
consistent basis with the current year.

Furchased goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the purchase consideration for shares
in subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures over the fair value to the Group of the net
assels acquired.

i} To December 31, 1997: Goodwill was written off to reserves in the year of acquisition.
The profit or loss on the disposal of a business acquired before December 31, 1957
takes inte account the attributable value of purchased goodwill relating to that
business,

From January 1, 1998: Goodwill has been recognised within fixed assets in the year in
which it arises and amortised on a straight line basis over its useful economic life, up
to a maximum of 20 years.

Turnover

Turnover, excluding value added tax and discounts, comprises sales to outside
customers, and the Group's percentage interest in sales of joint ventures. Long-term
contracts are included in turnover on the basis of the sales value of work peformed
during the year by reference to the total sales value and stage of completion of
these contracts.

Risk and revenue sharing partnerships

From time te time the Group enters into arrangements with partners whe, in return for
a share in future programme turnover or profits, make cash ¢r other payments in kind
which are not expected to be refundable. Sums received are credited to other operating
income and payments to partners are charged to cost of sales.

Research and development

The charge to the profit and loss account consists of research and development
expenditure incurred in the year, excluding known recoverable costs on contracts,
contributions to shared engineering programmes and application engineering.
Application engineering expenditure, incurred in the adaptation of existing technology
to new products, is capitalised and amortised over the programme life, up to a
maximurm of ten years, where both the technical and commercial risks are considered
to be sufficiently low.

Foreign currencies

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at
the rate ruling at the year end or, whete applicable, at the estimated sterling equivalent,
taking account of future foreign exchange and simfar contracts. The trading results of
overseas undertakings are translated at the average exchange rates for the year or,
where applicable, at the estimated sterling equivatent, taking account of future foreign
exchange and simflar contracts. Exchange adjustments arising from the retranslation of
the opening net investments, and from the translation of the profits or losses at average
rates, are taken to reserves. Other exchange differences, including those arising from
currency conversians in the usual course of trading, are taken into account in
determining profit on ordinary activities before taxation,

Treasury instruments
The accounting treatment of the key instruments used by the Group is as follows:

N Gains or losses arising on forward exchange contracts are taken to the profit and
loss account in the same pericd as the underlying transaction.

i} Netinterest arising on interest rate agreements is taken to the profit and
lass account.

i} Premiums paid or recelved on currency options are taken to the profit and loss
account when the cption expires or matures,

V) Gains or losses anising on jet fuel swaps are taken to the profit and loss account
in the same period as the underlying transaction.

If the underlying transaction to a hedge ceases to exist, the hedge is terminated and
the profits and losses an termination are recognised in the profit and foss account
immediately. If the hedge transaction is terminated, the profits and losses on
termination are held in the balance sheet and amortised aver the life of the original
underlying transactions.
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Post-retivement benefits

Contributions to Group pension schemes are charged to the prefit and loss account s
as to spread the cost of pensions at a substantially level percentage of payroll costs over
employees’ service lives.

The cost of providing post-retirement benefits other than pensions is charged to the
profit and 1658 account over the service lives of the 1elevant ernployees.

Certification costs

Costs incurred in respect of meeting regulatory certification requirements for new civil
engine/aircraft combinations, including those paid to airframe manufacturers, are
carred forward in intangible assets to the extent that they can be recovered out of
future sales and are charged to the profit and loss account over the programme life,
up to a maximum of ten years.

Interest

Interest payable is charged to the profit and loss account as incurred, except where the
borrowing finances tangibie fixed assets in the course of construction relating te power
development projects. Such interest is capitalised until the asset is complete and
income producing and is then written off by way of depreciation of the relevant asset.

Interest receivable Ts credited to the profit and loss account as earned.

Taxation

Provision for taxation is made at the current rate and for deferred taxation at the
projected rate on all timing differences which have criginated, but not reversed at
the balance sheet date.

Scrip dividends

The amounts of dividends taken as shares instead of cash under the scrip dividend
scheme have been added back te reserves. The nominal value of shares issued under
the scheme has been funded out of the share premium account.

Stock, contract provisions and long-term contracts

Stock and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Full provisian is made for any estimated losses 1o completicn of contracts having regard
to the overall substance of the arrangements including, if appropriate, related
commitments and undertakings given by customners. Provided that the outcorne of
long-term contracts can be assessed with reasonable certainty, such contracts are
valued at cost plus attributable prefit eamed to date.

Progress payments received, when greater than recorded wunover, ate deducted from
the value of work in progress except to the extent that payments on account exceed the
value of work in progress on any contract where the excess is included in creditors. The
amount by which recorded turnover of long-term contracts is in excess of payments on
account is classified as ‘amounts recoverable on contracts’ and is separately disclosed
within debtors.
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Accounting for leases

0} AsLessee
Assets financed by leasing agreements which give rights approximating to
ownership (finance leases) have been capitalised at armounts equal to the original
cost of the assets to the lessors and depreciation provided on the basis of the Group
depreciation policy. The capital elements of future obfigations under finance leases
are included as liabilities in the balance sheet and the current year's interest elerment,
having been allocated to accounting pericds to give a constant periodic rate of
charge on the outstanding balance, is charged 1o the profit and loss account.

The annual payments under all other lease arrangements, known as operating leases,
are charged to the profit and loss account on an accruals basis.

fi) AsLessor
Amounts receivable under finance leases are included under debtors and represent
the total amount outstanding under lease agreements less unearned Tncome.
Finance lease income, having been allocated to accounting periods to give a
constant periodic rate of return on the net cash investment, is included in turnever.

Rentals receivable under cperating leases are included in turnover on an accruals
basis.

Depreciation

i}y Land and buildings
Depreciation Is provided on the original cost of purchases since 1996 and on the
valuation of properties adopted at December 31, 1996 and is calculated on the
straight line basis at rates sufficient to reduce them to their estimated residual value.
Estimated lives, as advised by the Group's professional valuers, are:
a) Freehold buildings - five 1o 45 years (average 24 years).
b) Leasehold land and buildings - lower of valuers estimates or period of lease.

No depreciation is provided in respect of freehold land.

i) Plantand equipment
Depreciation is pravided on the original cost of plant and equipment and is
caleulated on a straight line basis at rates sufficient to reduce thern to their
estimated residual value. Estimated lives are in the range five to 25 years (average
16 years).

Aircraft and engines

Depreciation is provided on the original ¢ost of aircraft and engines and is calculated
on a straight line basis at rates sufficient ta reduce them to their estirmated residual
value. Estimated lives are in the range five 1 20 years {average 18 years).

In course ef construction
Nao depreciation is provided on assets in the course of construction,
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2 Segmental analysis

Group turnover Profit before interest Net assets'
Restated

2001 2000 2001 2000 00 2000
£m im £m fm £m £m

EENCE e
Marine '
L Energy
”Finrancrial sen‘/i‘cé‘s"'r - )
" Materials handling * o

Geographical analysisby origin:
United Kingdom

 Other ‘ T ases 203 T7a . ss 1,296 1008

6,328 5,864 n 289 2,571 2,731
Geographical analysis by destination:
UnitedKingdomn e AN 0056
"”'R.e_slt.ofEurope . ' o - ) 3
A e R
Salestogverseas subsidiaries {262)
Sales by overseas subsidiaries e 24898 2365
Sales by overseas joint arrangernents 13
Total overseas 4808
' Net assets exclude net debt of £501m (2000 net debt of £690m).
* The turnover of financial services businesses including share of joint ventures is £149m (2000 £115m).
* Materials handling was disposed of during 2000.
The analysis of underlying profit before interest, the profit and loss account exceptional items and the reconciliation to underlying profit hefore taxation are as follows:
2001 2000
Underlying Other Underlying Other
profit before Exceptional n ding Profit before profit before Exceptional non-trading Profit before
interest tems items interest interest ftems iterns interest
£m £m £m £m m £m £m £m

Civil aerospace 347 (136) (13) 198 332 9) (1) 312

Defence 175 8 & 1321 = Gy s

Matine | T3 as) . @n. 37 A - R

Energy e @na3) (s Es 033
Financialservices .~ 63 - L 62 56

M;aterialshandling ; 7 — - - —_ - — T — T (2]
594 {230)" {53)° 3N 559

Interest (119) (123}
Underlying profit before taxation 475 436

' See note 3.
* Comprising amortisation of goodwill £45m (2000 £46m) and loss on sale of businesses £11m (2000 £5m) less profit on sale of fixed assets £3m (2000 loss of £1m).
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

3 Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

2001 2000
m £m
Aftercredltmg . B O PR
(credltedtootheroperatlng mcome) e b 239 34
—payments(chargedtocostofsales) ' ' o (113) (129)
partnerships .

Auditors' fees were as follows curing the year:
Audit 2001 - Group: £3.0m (2000 £2,9m) including Company £0.6m {2000 £0.6m)
Other 2001 - United Kingdom £1.7m (2000 £1.1m)
- Rest of world £0.9m (2000 £0.9m)

' Rationalisation costs relate to termination of employment, site decommissioning and relocation and related disruption ta operations, including
accelerated depreciation of plant and machinery. At December 31, 2001 £144m was included in provisions {(see note 22).

? Provision in respect of the industrial Trent covering both contractual obligations and write-down of assets.

? Including appropriate amounts charged to stocks.

4 Net interest payable - Group

2001 2000
£m £m

Werest Payable O e e e e -
Bank loans and overd rafts ........ (45) (52)

' " Other borrowmgs

........................................................................................ (52) (55)
anceleases o R IO
\nterestcapnallsed o o - ) 2 1
........ e e e 0N A12)

Interest recelvable ' T ' o 24 27
(77) (85)
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5 Taxation

Restated
2001 2000
Tax charge £m £m
United Kingdom corporation 1ax 8t 30% (2000 3000 6 58
lessdoubletaxvelfef T e @ —
............................................................................................................... 2 58
Overseas current tax R a6 35
Joint ventures T 2 8
e e e e e B .57 102
:Uﬁ{t.?d..K.“?Qd.‘?'T‘.S'.‘?f?!f.ef?.t‘??‘.....‘..‘.‘..‘.‘ . R . L 15 4
i S . s 9
86 87
Tax reconciliation’
Profit on ordinary activities before taxaticn 192 166
Nominal tax charge at UK corporation taxate 30% (2000 30%) | 58 50
Goodwil notdeductible for taxpurpases T T 16 3
Unrelieved oversea's 1655es S o """""""""""""""""""""""" 2 16
Frxedassettl.mtngdrﬁeren;@smw_m_“ e T T LLLL 24 (91
Cthertiming differences (53) 24
D > o
57 102
! For the purpose of this reconciliation the tax on the profits of joint ventures has been assumed to be entirely current.
Analysts of taxation charge .......................................................................................................................................................................................
i e - S 134
‘Nonurderlyingitems fnote 7y (68) 7
86 87
6 Dividends - ordinary shares
2001 2000
£m £m
Interim 3.18p (2000 3.00p) per share e 5 47
Finat proposed 5.00p (2000 5.00p) pe'r“é'Ha'r—e """"""""""""""""" 81 79
132 126
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

7 Earnings per ordinary share

Basic earnings per ordinary share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of £106m (2000 £79m) by 1,589 million (2000 1,558 million)
ordinary shares, being the average number of ordinary shares in ssue during the year, excluding own shares held under trust (note 13) which have been treated as if they
had been cancelled.

Underlying earnings per ordinary share have been calculated as follows:
Restated
2000

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders

€5 companies)

Related tax effect.
Underlying earnings per ordinary share

Diluted basic earnings per ordinary share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of £106m (2000 £79m) by 1,616 million (2000 1,566 million)
ordinary shares, being 1,589 million (2000 1,558 million) as above adjusted by the bonus element of existing share options of 27 million (2000 8 miillion).

8 Employee information

2001 2000

Number Number

Average weekly number of Group employeesduring theyear B
UniecKingdom e e e 30200
Overseas 16,000 16,400
43,300 46,600

Civil aerospace 24,300 26,100
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9 Intangible fixed assets

Group Company
Certification Application Centification
Goodwill Costs engineering’ Total costs

£m

£m

L AIOnS e e Y,
Disposals

At December 31, 2001 861 111 20 992 111
777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 115 s
e e , B i} -
_ Provided during theyear A8 T T 12
Disposals m — — {t)
At December 31, 2001 22 77 — 169 77
Net book value at December 31, 2001 769 34 20 823 34
Net book value at December 31, 2000 as restated 836 41 — 877 41

' See Accounting poiicies page 41.

# adjustment resulting from the adoption of FRS 19 ‘Defarred Tax’ (see Accounting policies page 41}, of which £2m relates to the 2000 adjustments to fair values.
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

10 Tangible fixed assets

Land and Plant and Alrcraft and In course of
buildi quif t i <onstruction Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Costorvaluation "7
L Atanuay1,2001
. Bxchange ajustments

. Redlassifications
Disposals/write-offs
At December 31, 2001

Accumulated depreciation:

. Ondisposals of businesses """
Disposals/write-offs

At December 31, 2001
Net book value at December 31, 2001 414 1,005 118 195 1,732
Net book value at December 31, 2000 431 1,046 152 143 1,772

o 1,348

... Aaditions atcost .35
. Reclassifications T
Disposals)\)vrite—bffs B (40}

At December 31, 2001 1,403
Accumulated depreciatior:, -
L Atnaary 12001 473
~ Provided duringyear T 102
Disposélls/\)witebffs o (32)
At December 31, 2001 543
MNet book value at December 31, 2001 238 568 — 54 860
Net book value at December 31, 2000 239 573 — 63 875
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10 Tangible fixed assets continued

Group Company

2001 2000 2001 2000

Tangible fixed assets include: £m £m £m £m
Net bock value of finance leased assets 113 104 27 27

. Assets held for use in operating leases: e
" Cost ‘ e -

Depreciation 6n — —
Net book value 141 — —
Non-depreciable land 85 58 59

Freehold 383 400 230 231
Longleasehold e 19 8 2
Short Jeasehold 12 12 — {1
414 431 238 239

On a historical cost basts the net book value of land and buildings would have been as follows: e
______ 8L e e et e e oo BB AIS 288256
Depreciation {147} (152) {125) (118)
311 323 141 138

Capitalised interest included in net book value of assets in course of constiuction 5 4 - -
Capital expenditure commitments — contracted but not provided for 96 91 30 27

The Group has followed the transitional provisions of FRS 15 Tangible fixed assets’, to retain the book value of land and buildings, certain of which were revalued

in 1996 (see " below).

' Group properties were revalued at December 31, 1996 as follows:

i} Specialised properties, including certain of the Group's major manufacturing sites, were revalued on a depreciated replacement cost basis.

i) Non-specialised properties were revalued by reference to their existing use value.

ill) Properties surplus to the Group's requirements were revalued on an open market value basis.

In the United Kingdom the revaluation was canred out by Gerald Eve, Chartered Surveyors, Fuller Peiser, Chartered Surveyors and Storey Sons & Parker, Chartered Surveyors,

in accordance with the appraisal and valuation manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyers. Overseas properties were valued principaily by independent local valuers,
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

11 Investments - subsidiary undertakings

Shares Loans Total
£m £m £m
Company
GOt e e e e e e e e e e
Ay 1 O e e e e 388 502 1,887
Additions/{repayments) 87 {215) {128)
At December 31, 2001 1,472 287 1,759
The principal subsiclary undertakings are listed on pages 65 and 66.
12 Investments - joint ventures
Share of post
Shares acquisition
atcost reserves loans Total
£m £m £m £m

Share of retained profit —_ 5 — 5
At December 31, 2001 142 47 15 204'
Company e e, e ISR
Atlanuary 12001 e M= .88
Additions T - — - —
At Decernber 31, 2001 47 — 4 51

The principal joint ventures are listed on pages 67 and 8.

! Investments in joint ventures are represented by:
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13 Investments - other

Unlisted Own shares

investments held under
at cost trust’ Toral
£m £m £m
Group e e, e e e et et e
O - I o 33
Additions less amartisation 1 (4) (3)
At December 31,200 24 ) 30
LT T
Atdanvary 12001 o e e = LC I 10
Additions less amortisation — (4) {4)
At December 31, 2001 - 6 6
! Odinary shares in the Company are held in two trusts:
i) As part of the long-term incentive plan (LTIP), the Rolls-Royce 1999 executive share option plan and other employee share schemes
(see Remuneration report on pages 30 to 35).
This independently managed trust purchased shares on the open market:
£m
Jdune 25,1997 504296 atf3ddpershare e 12
Apil 24,1998 eS1103atfag2pershare e i8
""" March 26,1999~ 569800atf2sapershare e 14
June 30,1999 | 1A75000atF273persnare e 40
At December 31, 2001, these shares had a market value of £5.3m. In accordance with UITF 17 Employee share schemes’, the Company is required to amortise the
cost of lkely awards over each separate perfarmance measurement periad and 1o Include this charge as part of the costof 'wages and salaries”.
The UITF is a committee of the Accounting Standards Board.
i) Inrespect of a Qualifying Employee Share Trust (QUEST), which provides employees with shares under Inland Revenue approved Save As You Earn (SAYE) share schemes.
In accordance with UITF 17, no amortisation charge has been made. At December 31, 2001, a total of 401,283 of these shares had still not been allocated to
option holders, their market value being £0.7m. These outstanding allocations are expected 1o occur in 2002.
Baoth trusts have waived dividends and voting rights, 2nd their costs of administration have been charged to the Comnpany's profit and Yoss account.
14 Stocks
Group Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
£m £m £m £m
Rawmaterlals L e o e 218288 82 85
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

15 Debtors -~ amounts falling due within one year

Group Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
£m £m £m m

Trade debtors
Amounts recoverab!e on contracts

178 T R .
1,640 1,591 1,331 1334
16 Debtors — amounts falling due after one year
Group Company
Restated
2001 2000 2001 2000

Trade debtors

Prepayments and accrued mcome e
Prepaid pension contributions.

17 Short-term deposits and investments

Group Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
£m im £m fm
Short-term depaosits A e e 282106 203 =
Investments - government securities and corporate ‘ords 39 36 — —
301 142 203 —

18 Borrowings — amounts falling due within one year
Group Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
£m £m £m fm
OV IdraS e e e 28 AOB TTe e T
Otheroans OO . IO A T
Obhganons under finance leases 22 9 14 1
276 272 113 26
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19 Other creditors - amounts falling due within one year

Group Company

2001 2000 2001 2000

£m im £m £m

Paymentsreceivedonaccount’ e e e BR A 8
Trade reditors e .. 387884 289 %8
Amounts owed to e e, T Ln S 662
o Heintventwes T 61 .one 158 -
Corporatetaxanon ‘ L o ) 211 187 100 101

Flnallpr'oposeddwldend T T o 81 N 79 o 81 ?'9
2,720 2,559 2,240 2,111
"Includes payments received from jointventures 0o “ 76

20 Borrowings - amounts falling due after one year

Group Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
£m £m £m £m

Unsecured

Zero~coupon bonds 2005/2007 (including 9.0% interest accretion) * 43 39 = -

Repayable
Between one and two years -

byfﬁiﬁn'éftaﬁffr'héftit.s._‘__f_ﬁfffﬁffﬁﬁffﬁ]ﬁff,‘.‘__‘_'f_ffffﬁ S | SRS . S

Aﬁerﬂve.veersf.??y.inata'me.nt.s....].m.‘ e e
— otherwise 543 549 510 510
1,104 1,058 693 707

! The Group has borrowed US $300m through a subsidiary, Rolis-Royce Capital inc., in order to provide a loan for general Group purposes, This has been translated
into sterling after taking account of future contracts. The loan is guaranteed by the Company. These notes are the subject of interest swap agreements under which
counterparties have undertaken to pay amounts at fixed rates of interest in consideration for amounts payable by the Group at variable rates of interest.

¥ The Company has borrowed €756m in order to provide a loan for general Group purposes. These notes are the subject of currency swap agreements under which
counterparties have undertaken to pay amounts at fixed rates of interest and exchange in consideration for amounts payable by the Company at variable rates of
interest and at fixed exchange rates.

* Obfigations urder finance leases are secured by related leased assets.

* Secured on afrcraft financed by jeint arrangements. Repayment of the zero-coupon bonds is also guaranteed by the Company.

53 Rolis-Royee plc 2001




L

Notes to the financial statements
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21 Other creditors - amounts falling due after one year

Group Company

2001 2000 2001 2000

Restated at Unused Charged to At
January 1, Exchange ACT amounts profit and December 31,
2001 dj d lass account Utilised 2001

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Deferred taxation
Warranty/gua

! Deferred taxation restated for FRS 19 (see note 23).
* Includes exceptional rationalisation provision of £144m.

Post-employment, pensions and other post-retirement provisions are long term in nature and the timing of their utilisation is uncertain,

Warranty provisions primarily relate to products sold and generally cover a period of up to three years,

Provisions for contract loss and restructuring are generally expected to be utilised within one year.

Customer financing provisions cover guarantees provided for asset values and/or financing as described in note 28, Timing of utilisation is uncertain,
Insurance provisions relate to the Group's captive insurance business with timing of utilisation being uncertain.
QOther provisions comprise a number of liabilities with varying expected utilisation rates.
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23 Deferred taxation

Group Company
Restated Restated
£m £m
a9 T
(11) {109)
............................ 109
o
e 33
At December 31, 2001 (69}
' The adoption of FRS 19 Deferred Tax' (see Accounting policies page 41) has resulted in a net prior year adjustment of £11m. This comprises an increase in deferred tax
provisions of £119m offset by the recognition of deferred tax assets of £108m.
There are other deferred tax assets totalling £27m (2000 £22rm) that have not been recognised on the basis that their future economic benefit is uncertain.
The analysis of the deferred tax position is as follows:
Group Company
Restated Restated

Advance corporaticn tax

Included in;
_ Provisions
Debtors

5

The above figures exclude taxation payable on capital gains which might arise from the sale of fixed assets at the values at which they are stated in the Group’s balance sheet.
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24 Financial instruments
Detzils of the Group's policies on the use of financial instruments are given in the Finance Director's review on pages 18 to 23 and in the accounting policies on page 41.
The following disclosures provide additional infarmation regarding the effect of these instruments on the financtal assets and liabilities of the Group, excluding short-term

debtors and creditors where permitted by FRS 13,

Funding and interest rates

2001
Sterling US Dollar Eure Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Financial assets

386 4711 73 106 1,036

Provisions *
(1,021) (203} {10} {219) {1,453)
2000
Stetling US Dollar Euro Other Total
£m £m £m £m im
financialagsets =~ OO SOOI IS I
) VCashatbankandln hand ) L 77777777 ‘ o 474 ' 14 s 4 458
Shart- term”deposns ) e R 10 N B T R 54 106
.]]beUéfH'rﬁéntsecurmeﬁ'éhcﬁifcﬁéfrftéérﬁatebonds e R 2 T T 36
Unlisted fixed asset in estments N - o = 13 —10 N £
Debtors — amountsfallmg duea&eroneyear o T T ey g Ty s T e
578 87 39 83 787

Financial Ilabnlmes
- Floatlng-rate borrowings *
Fixed- rate borrowsngs B

."PI’OVIS\ODS ) (11} —_ — ] B3

(1,037) (99) {59) (208

Motes

! Cash at bank and in hand comprises bank balances and deposits placed on money markets overnight.

* The short-term deposits are deposits placed on money markets for periods ranging from two nights up to one month.

! The interest on the securities and bonds are at fixed rates. The weighted average interest rate on the sterfing securities is 6.4% (2000 6.7%) and the weighted average
interest rate on the US Dollar securities is 5.0% (2000 9.0%). The weighted average time for these securities is 2.6 years (2000 2.5 years).

* These amounts do not incur or accrue interest.

* Financial llabilities are stated after taking into account the various interest rate and currency swaps entered into by the Group,

* The floating-rate financial liabilities comprise bank borrowings bearing interest at rates fixed in advance for periods ranging from one to six months based on the
applicable LIBOR rate.

" The weighted average period for borrowings on which no interest is paid is eight years (2000 nine years).
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24 Financial instruments continued

The analysis of fixed-rate borrowings is as follows:

2001 2000

Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted

average average average average

interest rate period for interest rate period for

atwhich which rate at which which rate

Total fixed 1s fixed Toral fixed is fixed

£m % Months £m % Months

T II Y e e e e e e SRS PO
ing L R - s e e B

L Usollar e e e e o8 T A s s
Other 29 60 29 54 72

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows:

Borrowing facilities
The Group has various borrowing facilities available to it. The undrawn committed facilities available at Cecember 31, 2001 were as follows:

Expiring within one year o ) -
Expur 1€ 10 two years
Expiring thereafter

Exchange risk management

The table below shows the Group's currency exposures at December 31, 2001 on currency transactions that give rise 10 the net currency gains and losses recognised in
the prefit and loss account. Such exposures comprise the net monetary assets and liabilities of the Group at December 31, 2001 that are not denominated in the functional
currency of the operating company involved, The exposures are stated after taking into account the effects of currency swaps and forward foreign exchange centracts.

2000 2000

Net foreign currency monetary assets/{liabilities) Net foreign currency monetary assets/(liabilities)

. . Sterling US Daollar Euro Other Sterling US Dollar Euro Other
Functional currency of Group operation £m £m £m fm £m £m
Sterling e T2
S Dollar — — e — — —
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24 Financial instruments continued

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
The estimated fair vajue of the Group’s financial instruments are summarised below:

20Mm 2000

Book value Fairvalue Book valug Fair value
£m

Unlisted fixed assetinvestments e B8 2B

¢2761.],f],f ¢

Derivatives used to hedge the interest, currency and commeodity exposure of the business:
Jet fuel swaps

Forward purchase of shares to meet share option commitrents

Where available, market values have been used to determine current values. Where market values are not available, fair values have been calculated by discounting
expected future cash flows at prevailing imerest and exchange rates.

Cash at bank and in hand, short-term deposits and short-term borrowings:

The book value approximates to fair value either due to the short-term maturity of the instruments or because the interest rate of investments is reset after periods not
greater than six months.

Derivatives:

The fair value of derivatives is the estimated amount, based on current market rates, which the Group would expect to pay or receive were it to terminate the derivatives
at the balance sheet date.

Hedges of future transactions

As described in the Finance Director's review on pages 18 to 23 the Group’s pelicy is to hedge the following exposures:
Interest rate risk — using interest swaps

Currency exposures on future forecast sales — using forward foreign currency contracts, currency swaps and currency options
Commodity price risk — using jet fuel swaps
Gains and losses on instruments used for hedging are a5 outlined in the accounting policies on page 41.

Unrecognised gains and losses on instruments used for hedging, and the movements therein, are as follows:

200 2000
Total net Total net

Galns {Losses) gansi{losses) Gains Losses) gains/ilosses)

£m £m £m Em Em Em

Unrecognised gains and losses on hedges at January 1,2001 [T 9% (389) .. (293) ... 64 20 ..
Gains and losses arising in previous yeas that were recognised in 2001 ' (44) : 90 46 27) 2 125}
Gains and losses arising in previous year that were not recognisedin2001 52 oy a7y LA 19
Gairs and losses anising in 2007 that were not recognised in 2000 ) 26 412} (386) 59 @y 1P}
Unrecognised gains and losses on hedges at December 31, 2001 of which: 78 {711) (633) 56 (389) (293)
. Gainsand losses expected to be recognised in2002 EE TN --~-7) SO 1 L. FE: o SR e ] 62)
_Gains and losses expected to be recognised thereafter 777777777777 45 (484) (439) 42 (27'3) ' (231)
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25 Share capital

Non-equity Equity Nominal
special ordinary shares value
share of £1 of 20p each £rm
Authorised e e
At January 1 and December 31, 2001 1 2,000,000,000 400
lssuedandfully paid
AtJanuary 1, 2601

Exercise of share

e 10000220
— 21,785415 4
At December 31, 2001 1 1,601,143,713 320

Certain speciai rights, set out in the Company’s Articles of Association, attach to the special rights redeemable preference share (special share) issued

ta HM Government, Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 1985, the special share may be redeermed by the Treasury Sclicitor at par at any time,
The special share confers no rights to dividends or to vote at general meetings but in the event of a winding-up it shall be repaid at its neminal value in
priority to any other shares.

At December 31, 2001, the following ordinary shares were subject to options:

Date of Exercise Exercisable

grant Number price dates

..................... zmz

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 19 20022005
1996 100,800 238p 2002-3006

1,334,608 2002-2000

20032010
o 2004200
2004-2011
20042011
. 2004-2011
2004-2011

2001 $4857304  108p | 2003/2004/2006/7008

Under the terms of the executive share option scherne and the executive share option plan, options granted to 522 directors and senior executives
were gutstanding at December 31, 2001.

Under the terms of the sharesave schemes, the Board may grant options to purchase ordinary shares in the Company each year to those employees
who enter into an Inland Revenue approved Save As You Earn (SAYE} contract for a pericd of either three, five or seven years.

Employees in 32 countries participate in sharesave schemes through arrangements broadly comparable to the UK scheme.

*Relates to options granted under the Vickers plc sharesave schemes which, following the acquisition of Vickers ple, were exchanged In accordance with
Inland Revenue Rules for options aver Rolls-Royce plc ordinary shares.
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Notes to the financial statements

continued
26 Reserves
Non-distributable
Share Revaluation Other Profit and
premium reserve reserves loss account
£m £m £m £m
Group

At Januar;;,' l

ExchangeadJUStmemS S =
Scnpdlwdendadjustment e e

Ordinry shares issued relating toscrip dividend N - B S

Retained loss for the year ' ’ ' - _ - “(26)
At December 31, 2001 636 103 189 820
Company

Retained loss for the year S — T — '(Gé)

At December 31, 2001 636 97 167 789

The cumylative amount of goodwill, arising on the acquisition of undertakings stillin the Group at December 31, 2001, written off against other reserves amounts
1o £380m (2000 £387m). The continuance of this basis, in respect of pre-1998 acquisitions, is permitted under the transitional arrangements of FRS 10.

The undistributed profits of overseas subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures may be liable to overseas taxes and/or United Kingdom tax (after allowing for double tax relief)
if remitted as dividends to the UK, No deferred tax has been provided as there are currently no commitments to pay such dividends.

27 Operating lease annual commitments

Group Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
£m im £m im

Leases of land and buildings which expire:

Nnoneyear ...

. Within one year

 Afeer five years
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28 Contingent liabilities

In connectian with the sale of its products, on some occasions the Group and Company enter into individually and collectively significant long-term contingent obligations. These
can involve, inter alia, guaranteeing financing for customers, guaranteeing a proportion of the values of both engine and airframe, entering into leasing transacticns, commitments
to purchase aircraft and in certain circurnstances could involve the Group and Company assuming certain of its customers’ entitlements and related borrowing or cash flow
obligations until the value of the security can be realised.

At December 31, 2001, the total gross contingent liabilities relating to financing arrangements on all delivered aircraft less insurance arrangerments and relevant provisions
amounted 1o £857m (2000 £766m), of which £78m (2000 £101m) refeted 1o sales finance support 1o joint ventures, Taking into account 1he net realisable value of the relevant
security, the net contingent liabilities in respect of financing arrangements on all delivered aircraft amounted to £206m (2000 £184m). Sensitivity czlculations are complex, but,
for example, if the value of the relevant security was reduced by 20%, a net contingent liability of approximately £283m (2000 £347m) would result. There are alsc net contingent
liabilities in respect of undelivered aircraft but it is not considered practicable to estimate these as deliveries can be many years in the future and the related financing will only

be put in place at the appropriate time.

At the date these accounts are approved, the directors regard the possibility that there will be any significant loss arising from these contingencies, which cover a number
of customers over a long period of time, as remote. In determining this, and the values above, the directors have taken account of advice, principally from Airclaims Limited,
professional aircraft appraisers, who base their calculations on a current and future fair market value basis assuming an arms-length transaction between a willing seller

and a willing buyer.

Contingent liabilities exist in respect of guarantees provided by the Group in the ordinary course of business for product delivery, performance and reliability. The Company and
some of its subsidiary undertakings have, in the normal course of business, entered irito arangements in respect of expert finance, performance bonds, countertrade obligations
and minor riscellaneous iterns. Various Group undertakings are parties te legal actions and claims which arise in the ordinary course of business, some of which are for substantial
amounts. As a consequence of the insclvency of an insurer as previously reported in the 2000 accounts, the Group is no longer fully insured against known and potential claims from
employees who worked for certain of the Group's UK based businesses for a peried prior to the acquisition of those businesses by the Group. While the cutcome of some of these
matters cannot precisely be foreseen, the directors do not expect any of these arrangements, legal actions or claims, after allowing for provisions already made, to resultin
significant loss to the Group or Company.

In addition to the guarantees referred to in note 20 and above at Decermber 31, 2001, there were other Company guarantees in respect of financiat abligations of subsidiary
undertakings £156m (2000 £38m), and in respect of joint ventures £51m (2000 £14m).

29 Related party transactions

Joint ventures
In the course of normal operations, the Group has contracted on an arms-length basis with joint ventures. The aggregated transactions which are considered to be materiz|
and which have not been disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements are summarised below:

2001 2000

£m £m

Otherincome e e e e e e e 16 16
Purchases of goods and services (333) (233
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

30 Post-retirement benefits

Pensions
The Group's pension schemes are mainly of the defined benefit type and the assets of the schemes are held in separate trustee administered funds.

The pension cost relating to the UK schemes is assessed in accordance with SSAP 24 ‘Accounting for Pension Costs', based on the advice of independent qualified actuaries using
the projected unit method. The latest actuarial valuations of the principal schemes were as at March 31, 2001 {for the Vickers Group Pension Scheme), April 5, 2001 (for the
Rolls-Royce Group Pension Scheme), and March 31, 2000 {for The Rolls-Royce Pension Fund). The principal assumptions used were that in the long term the average returmns on
investments would be between 2.0% and 2.25% per annum higher than the average increase in pay and between 3.5% and 4.0% per annum higher than the average increase in
pensions. Assets were valued on a market related basis.

The pension cost refating to overseas schernes is calculated In accordance with local best practice and regulations.
The total pension cost for the Group was £72m (2000 £70m) of which £17m (2000 £12m} relates to overseas schemes.

The aggregate of the market values of the UK schemes at the dates of the latest actuarial valuations was £4,933m. The actuarial value of the assets of the principal schemes
represented respectively 1009 (for The Rolls-Royce Pension Fund), 129% (for the Vickers Group Pension Scheme) and 126% (for the Rolls-Royce Group Pension Scheme) of the
value of the projected accrued liabilities,

The difference between the value of the assets and the value of the projected accrued liabilities (after allowing for expected future increases in earnings and discretionary pension
increases) is being amortised over periods of between 8.5 and 13 years, being the average expected remaining service lives of the pensionable employees.

Prepayments of £181m (2000 £157m) are included in debtors and accruals of £33m (2000 £24m) are included in provisions for liabilities and charges, being the differences
between the accumulated amounts paid inte the pension funds and the accumulated pension costs.

Post-retirement benefits other than pensions
In the USA, and to a lesser extent in some cther countries, the Group's employment practices include the provision of heaithcare and life insurance benefits for retired employees.
In the USA, 262 retired employees currently benefit from these provisions and it is estimated that 5,300 current employees will be eligible on retirement.

The cost of post-retirement benefits other than pensions for the Group was £17m (2000 £14m). Provisions for the benefit obligations at December 31, 2001 amounted

to £118m (2000 £102m) and are included in provisions for liabilities and charges. There were nc plan assets at either December 31, 2001 or December 31, 2000. The future costs
of benefits are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuaries and are based on a weighted average discount rate of 7.25% and a weighted average
assumed healthcare costs trend rate of 5.0%.
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30 Post-retirement benefits continued

FRS 17 disclosures

FRS 17 ‘Retirernent Benefits’ will replace SSAP 24 "Accounting for Pension Costs' for periods ending on or after June 22, 2003, Irs the transition period certain disclosures
are required which are included below.

The valuations with respect to UK schemes have been based on the most recent actuarial valuation (as noted above) and updated hy the scheme actuary to
Decernber 31, 2001 taking account of the requirements of FRS 17. For the material overseas defined benefit schemes the last formal actuarial valuations have been

updated to December 31, 2001 by a qualified actuary taking account of the requirerents of FRS 17.

The principal actuarial assumptions were as follows:

UK Overseas
schemes schemes

Discountrate
Inflation assumpticn

! Weighted average percentage.

The assets in the principal schemes and the expected rates of return at December 31, 2001 were as follows:

Group Company
UK schemes Overseas schemes
Expected Expected Expected
long-term long-term long-term
rate of return Marketvalue  rate of retum Market value rate of return Marketvalus

Equities
Sovereigndebt
Corporate bonds
Other
Total market value ofassets oo e B0 T B0 e 3218
Present value of schemne liabifities S S = (4,986)' —_ ) T (3,782)
Defictintheschemes e e T VOB e T {566)
Related deferred tax asset - 122 —_ 170
Net pension liability —_ {284) e (396)

' Provisions of £157m (see note 22) exist for overseas post-employment Denefits and pensions.
If the above amounts had been recognised in the financial statements, the net assets for the Group and the Company at December 31, 2001 would be reduced by

£422m and £401m respectively, with a matching reduction in profit and loss reserve. These amounts have been calculated after taking account of pensions prepayments
and provisicns for pensions and other post-retirement benefits, net of refated deferred tax.
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

31 Disposal or termination of businesses

During the year the Group dispesed of or terminated its interests in several srmall businesses, as summarised below:

Stacks
Debrors
Creditors

Accrued costs
Net cash inflow - Group cash flow statement 102
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Principal subsidiary undertakings
at December 31, 2001

Incorporated within the UK

Civilasrospace e

Rolls E.L. Turbofans Limited

Defence .

Vickers Engineeringplc’

Marina systems e,

Rolls-Royce Marine Power Operations Limited

cial servicesandcorporate
rseas Holdings Limited *

Rolls-Royce Air

Vickers 'p'lc

' The interest is held by Vickers plc.
*The interest is held by Rolls-Royce Power Engineering ple.
* These subsidiaries act as agents of Rolls-Royce plc.

The above companies operate principally in the UK and the effective Group interest is 100%.
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Principal subsidiary undertakings
continued

Incorporated overseas

Civil aerospace

Brazil _Repalrand overhaul
France Rolls-Royce Tec e Project support B
__Rolls-Royce Deutschland_Ltd &Co KG ... BR70Qseries engme development and manufacture

Rolls-RoyceEngme Serwces Oakland Inc. " T Rey
Rolls-Royce Gear Systems Inc.*

Canada
Canada )

USA Rolls-Royce Capital Inc.” Financial services

' The imerests are held by Rolls-Royce Overseas Holdings Limited.

* The interest is held as follows: 50.5% Rolls-Royce Erste Beteiligungs GmbH, 49.5% Rolls- -Royce Zweite Beteiligungs GmbH.
* The interest is held by Rolls-Royce Asset Management Inc.
" The interests are held by Rolls-Royce North America Ventures i Inc.

* The interests are held by Vickers International Limited.

“The interest is held by Rolls-Royce Holdings Canada Inc,

" The interest is held by Rolls-Royce (Ireland),

*The interest is held by Rolls-Royce North America (USA} Haldings Ceo.

* The interest is held by Rolis-Royce North America Ventures Il Inc.

The above companies operate principally in the country of their incorporation. The effective Group interest is 100%.

A list of all subsidiary undertakings will be included in the Company's annual retum to Companies House.
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Principal joint ventures
at December 31, 2001

Incorporated within the UK

% of class % of total
held by equity held by
Class  Rolis-Rayce ple Rofis-Reyce ple
Civilaerospace e - .
TRT Limited S AOrdinary — } o "49‘5
Turbine blade repair services . (BCrdinery 100 0
Turbine Surface Technologies Limited A Ordinary — ] 50
Turbine surface coatings B Ordinary 100
Defence .
Rolls-Royce Snecma Limited (UK &France) CAShares L ] R 50
Engine collaboration BShares e )
Rolls-Royce Turbomeca Limited (UK & France) * AShares e } '5()
Adour and RTM222 engines collaboration | e i, BShares 100 0
Turbo-Union Limited (UK, Germany & Italy) ' ; Ordinary 40 } 20
RB199 engine collahoration A Shares 375
Energy . o SRR . e
Rolls Wood Grouﬁ (kepair and Overhauls) Limited ST Ab'rdmary' BT o} } """ L:EO
Repair and overhaul B Ordinary —
Financial servicesand corporate
ﬁipha Barimers Loasing Limaitad T A'b'fd'fh-é'r')} ................ 100] ................ 0
Engine leasing B Ordinary —
Incorporated overseas
% of class % of total
held by equity held by
Class Rolis-Royce plc Rolls-Royce plc
"Xian XR Aero Components Co Lumited Grdinary g 2
Hong Kong Aero Engme Services Limited' T 5?d|nary 45 45
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, Repair and overhaul e ; , ) B e
Israel Techlet Aerofoils Limited* 7 T AQrdinary 50 } 50
________ oo Manufacture of compressoraerofolls e, BOrdinary 50 )
haly Europea Microfusioni Aerospaziali SPA Crdinary 333 333
. Operationofcastingsfacility
SaudiArabia  Middle East Propulsion Company """""""""""""" F bréiér] """""""""""" 16.7 } 167
..................... Repalr and Overnaul | e e et et e TR T,
Singapore International Engine Component Overhaul Pte Limited ' Common 50 50
‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ Repair and overhaul ) - S
Smgapore """ S 'i'ngapore Aeto Engine Services Limited ' (effective Intetest 39%) Ordlnary """"""""" 3 7 30
. Repairand overhaul ) o o
Spain Industria de Turbo PropulsoresSA T Ordinary 469 469
o Manufacture and maintenance of aero engines. e e e e e e e e e
Switzerland IAE International Aero Engines AG (UK, Germany, Japan & USA) ' A Shares 100
V2500 series engine collaboration B Shares —
C Shares — 325
T D Shares —
USA bataSystems&Soiiutions.LL o T Commen 50
.. Advanced controls and predictive data management - B - o
UsA Texas Aero Engme Services, LLC* o Or dmary 50 50
. FRepairand overhaul L S
UsAa Williams-Rolls inc.” (UK & Noith America) Tommen s T 15

FJ44 engine collaboration
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Principal joint ventures
continued

Incorporated overseas continued

% of class % of total
held &y equity held by
Class  Rolls-Royee ple Rolls-Royce plc
Defence - L o L
Germany EUROJET Turbo GmbH (UK Gwmany Italy& Spain) (effectlve interest 39%) o T Ordmar)f BEER 33
... 1200 engine collaboration e e et e e
Germany MTU, Turbomeca, Rolls-uoyce GmbH (UK France&Germany) Ordinary 333 333
MTR390 engine collaboration
Financial services and corperate e e e e
Isle of Man Pembroke Group Limited * (Gire) o o o Ordinary 50 50
e Arcraftleasing B Y
usa’ AlphaLeasing (Us)LLc” T T Common s T 50
O - L L OO OO
usa Alpha Leasing {US) (No. 2L’ Common 50 50
O - L O
Usa Exostar LLC* ) o Common 176 176
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, B2B exchange B R B e B S
usa Rol'l's'ﬁoyce&PartnersFmance usyLLe’ T R o 7 Common s " 50

Engine leasing

Unincorporated overseas

B et O
USA Light Helicopter Turbine Englne Company lLHTEC)
Rells-Reyce Corporation has a 50% interest in this unincorporated partnership which was formed to jointly develop and market the T800 engine.

' The interests are held by Roils-Royce Gverseas Holdings Limited.
*Theinterest is held by Middie East Equity Partners Uimited,

*The interest is held by Rolls-Royce Control Systems Holdings Co.

* The interest is held by Rolls-Royce Engine Services Holdings Co.

* The interest is held by Rolls EL. Turbafans Limited.

* The interest s held by Roils-Royce & Partners Finance (Netheriands) BY.
? The interests are held by Rolls-Royce Finance Holdings Co.

* The interest is held by Rolls-Royce Investment Ca.

The countries of principal operations are stated in brackets after the name of the company.

Joint arrangements that are not entities
at December 31, 2001

% of class % of total

held by equity held by

Class Rolks-Royce plc Rolls-Royee ple

Jersey RS Leasing Limited ' A Ordinary 100 ] 50
Alrcraft leasing B Ordinary —

' The interest is held by Rolls-Royce Leasing Limited.
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Directors’ responsibilities
for the financial statements

Report of the independent auditors
to the members of Rolls-Royce plc

Company law requires the directars to prepare financial statements for each financial
year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group and of the profitor loss for that period.

in preparing those financial staternents, the directors are required to:

i) select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

ii) rmake judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

iy state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject 1o
any matetial departures disclosed and explained in the finandial staternems;

iv) prepare the financial staterents on the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the Company and the Group will continue
in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial pasition of the Company and to enable
thern to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985.
They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them

to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.

We have audited the financial statements on pages 36 to 68. We have also examined
the amounts disclosed relating to emoluments, share opticns, long-term incentive plan
interests and directors’ pension entitlernants which form part of the Rermuneration
report on pages 30 to 35,

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report. As described on this page,
this includes responsibility for preparing the financial statements in accordance with
applicable United Kingdom law and accounting standards. Our responsibifities, as
Indepenrdent auditors, are established in the United Kingdom by statute, the Auditing
Practices Board, the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and by our
profession’s ethical guidance.

We report Lo you our opinion as to whether the financia! statements give a true and fair
view and are properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also
report to you if, in our opinion, the directors’ report is not consistent with the financlal
statements, if the Company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not
received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if infermation
specified by law or the Listing Rules regarding directors’ remuneration and transactions
with the Group is not disclosed.

We review whether the statemnent on page 25 reflects the Company’s comptiance
with the seven provisions of the Combined Code specified for our review by the
Listing Rules, and we report if it does not. We are not required to consider whether the
Board's statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinicn
on the effectiveness of the Group's corporate governance procedures or its risk and
control procedires,

We read the other information contained in the annual repert, including the corporate
governance statement, and consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial
statements. We consider the implications for aur report if we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or rmaterial inconsistencies with the financial staternenits.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. it also includes an assessrment
of the significant estimates and judgerents made by the directors in the preparation of
the financial statements, and of whether the accounting pelicies are appropriate to the
Group's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit 5o as t¢ abtain all the information and
explanations which we considered necessary in grder to provide us with sufficient
evidence ta give reasonable assucance that the financial statements ate free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming
our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of informaticn in
the financial statements.

Opinion

in our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company and the Group as at December 31,2001 and of the profit of the Group for
the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985

i A

Chartered Accountants, Registered Auditar
London
March 6, 2002
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Group five year review
for the years ended December 31

Profit and loss account

1998 1997

£m £m

Group turnover ' 4471 4323
Operating profit before exceptional items and net research and development 626 539
Operatmgexceptlonai|tem5 e [
Research and development (net)’ (310) (268)

Group operating profit *

Nel interast payable

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

.................................. 35 276
Taxation (76) 75
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 249 . 201
Equity rhlnorlty interests in subsidiary undertakmgs ' (2) {1)
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 06 78S Lz 200
Dividends 59 88)
Transferred {from}/to reserves 148 112
*Research and developrent(gross) e 636y 604y (626} (668} (595)

Gmup turnover

Discontinued operations

* Group operatmg prof‘ti(loss)

The profit and loss accounts for 1997 to 2000 have been restated for FRS 19 Deferred Tax.
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Balance sheet 2001 2000 1997
£m fm £m
Fixedassets e e e e et TR 28562838 1309
Current assets 4551 o007 ) 3284
OO 7340 6856 4,593
Liabilities and provisions ) (5,270) (4815 (3.093)
2,070 2041 1,500
SN B e e 328 M4 LR8BS %
Reserves 1,748 1,726 1658 T 1431 1,185
Equity shareholders'funds e . W068 2040 1967 W32 A8l
'I\.;Iinority interests in subsidiary undertakings ‘ 2 [ [E 12 e
2,070 2041 1,980 1,744 1,500

The 'oalance sneets for 1997 10 2000 have been restated for FRS 19 'Deferred Tax'.
Cash flow 2001 2000 1999 1998 1987

Acquisitions and disposals_

e 1] . 658) B3 46
Cash flow from financing {360 622 13 13
Increase/{decreasel in cash and liquid resources {349y (36) 78 59
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Shareholders’ information

Financial calendar

) Aprﬂ 24 2002
Apn! 24- 30 2002
‘ Apnl 26 2002

 May 27, 20()2

te for new scnp dmdend mstructlons o )
Annuial General Meetmg, The Queen Elizabeth il Conference Centre,
Broad Sanctuary, Wes.tmmster London SW1

11am May 30,2002

2002 Annual Report publlshed Apnl 2003

* Note: Prelirminary and interim results are notified by press advertisernents and will also be available on the
Company’s website,

Analysis of erdinary sharaholders at December 31, 2001

Number of % of total % of totat
Number of shares holdings holdings shares
120,611

] 000 001 and over

326623
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Shareholder enquiries

If you would prefer to receive new shares instead of cash dividends, please ask the
Registrar for a scrip dividend mandate. ¥ you have any queries on the following:
i) Transfer of shares

ii) Change of name or address

iii) Lost share certificates

iv) Lost or out of date dividend ¢heques

vl Death of a registered holder of shares

vi) Any other query relating to Rolls-Royce plc shares

please write to, or telephone, the Registrar at the following address:
Computershare Investar Services PLC

PO Box 82

The Paviions

Bridgwater Road

Bristol BS99 7NH

Helpline: 0870 702 0111

You may also contact the Registrar through the Internet at www.computershare.com

The Company operates a free-of-charge service for consolidating the individual
shareholdings of immediate members of a family. Please ask the Registrar for
details if you are interested.

Low-cost share dealing

Details of special low-cost dealing services in the Company’s shares may be obtained
from Hoare Gevett Lirnited (telephone 020 7678 8000) and from NatWest Stockbrokers
Limited {telephone 020 7895 5489). Both are members of the Securities and Futures
Authority and NatWest Stockbrokers is also @ member of the London Stack Exchange.

You can obtain the current market price of the Company’s shares by viewing teletext
or similar services.

Internet
The Annual Report, Company announcernents and other information are available
through the Internet on www.rolls-royce.com
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